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P R O C E E D I N G S  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: C a l l  the  hear ing back t o  order. 

Mr. Har r is ,  we are now going t o  proceed i n t o  the 

lechnical phase o f  the  hearing. Are there any pre l iminary 

i a t t e r s  we need t o  address a t  t h i s  time? 

MS. FLEMING: Yes, Commissioners. There are two 

iroposed s t i p u l a t i o n s  on Page 13 o f  the prehearing order. 

i s  my understanding t h a t  t he  p a r t i e s  do no t  agree t o  the 

Voposed S t i p u l a t i o n  1. However, S t a f f  recommends t h a t  the 

:ommission accept the second s t i p u l a t i o n .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Give us j u s t  a moment t o  t u r n  

to Page 13 o f  the prehearing order. Okay. There are two 

iroposed s t i p u l a t i o n s  l i s t e d .  

It 

Mr. Burgess, do you wish t o  address these? 

MR. BURGESS: Commissioner, we have no problems w i t h  

the second s t i p u l a t i o n ,  proposed s t i p u l a t i o n .  We would 

s t i pu la te  t o  t h a t .  With regard t o  the f i r s t  s t i p u l a t i o n ,  f i r s t  

it i s  my understanding t h a t  the  number i s  no t  a d iscreet  number 

tha t  i s  unchanging throughout time, bu t  ra the r  i s  i n d i c a t i v e  o f  

a methodology and i s  an amount t h a t  ex is ted  a t  a p a r t i c u l a r  

po in t  i n  t ime and would continue on. 

But, nevertheless, some o f  the test imony t h a t  was 

presented by the  customers, I t h i n k ,  would bear on t h a t .  And 

therefore I cannot s t i p u l a t e  t o  the amount t h a t  i s  i n  there. 

As I understand i t , the imputed revenue would a f f e c t  the amount 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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o f  t he  refund ca lcu lat ion,  and customers have ra ised disputes 

i n  those areas, and therefore I cannot s t i p u l a t e  t o  Proposed 

S t i p u l a t i o n  1. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Friedman, do you have 

anything t o  add or  c l a r i f y  on the  proposed s t ipu la t ions? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: No, Mr. Deason. I f  Publ ic Counsel 

i s n ' t  w i l l i n g  t o  s t i pu la te ,  he 's  not  going t o  s t ipu la te .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . 
Commissioners, we have one proposed s t i p u l a t i o n  a t  

t h i s  p o i n t  apparently. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I have - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioner , you may proceed. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I want t o  make sure I 

understand what Mr. Burgess - -  what h i s  statement means. You 

are saying t h a t  you disagree w i t h  the  d o l l a r  amount, therefore 

you are not  w i l l i n g  t o  accept the  s t i pu la t i on?  

MR. BURGESS: That i s  cor rec t ,  Commissioner Bradley. 

That based on the customer testimony t h a t  was presented, t h a t  

the ca l cu la t i on  should have included a greater amount o f  

imputed revenue from the  ren ta l  l o t s ,  and thereby t h a t  would 

have increased the amount o f  the  refund. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: The response from s t a f f  i s ?  

MR. HARRIS: It i s  our understanding t h a t  - -  you 

heard the argument t h i s  morning, OPC i s  - -  the customers 

t e s t i f i e d  as they t h i n k  the 70 ren ta l  l o t  ca lcu la t ion  i s  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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ncorrect .  I f  the Commission makes some f i nd ing  based on t h a t  

lestimony, t h a t  would, i n  fac t ,  change the amount t h a t  we have 

IS the s t i pu la t i on .  It i s  my understanding t h a t  i f  the 

:ommission makes a f i nd ing  a f fec t i ng  t h a t  70 l o t  number, i t  

r i l l  change the amount o f  the refund. 

I f  the Commission makes no f ind ing ,  then i t  i s  my 

inderstanding t h a t  t h i s  number t h a t  i s  l i s t e d  would end up 

Ieing the correct  number o f  the refund as o f  the PAA. 

:ontinuing t o  accrue i n t e r e s t .  And s t a f f  has a ca lcu la t ion  o f  

;he i n t e r e s t  accrued t o  date f o r  the f i n a l  number. But I guess 

/hat I ' m  saying i s  depending on what f i nd ing  the Commission 

lakes as t o  the number o f  unrentable l o t s ,  i t  w i l l  a f f e c t  the 

mount o f  the refund. 

It i s  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioner? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t ' s  r i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let the Commissioner ask h i s  

luest i  on. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: I ' m  sorry, I d i d n ' t  mean - -  
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: That I s a1 1 r i g h t .  My 

luestion i s  i f  there are - -  hypothet ica l ly ,  i f  there were no 

idjustments made based on rented and nonrented l o t s ,  would the 

Ia r t i es  agree t h a t  the  number i n  S t i pu la t i on  1 i s  accurate? 

lould the par t ies  s t i p u l a t e  t o  t h a t  number as o f  a ce r ta in  

late, absent any addi t ional  adjustments? I understand t h a t  we 

i re  going t o  be t a l k i n g  about t h a t  today. But based on where 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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we are r i g h t  now, i s  there agreement on t h a t  number? 

MR. BURGESS: Yes. From us, Commissioner, there i s  

an agreement. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Cer ta in ly .  That i s  t he  PAA number. 

MR. HARRIS: And, Commissioners, I ' m  sorry,  I 

misinformed you a moment ago. My technical s t a f f  has corrected 

me. The refund t h a t  we have calculated i s  based on the  l o t  

owning customers, the number o f  customers. Changing the amount 

o f  the 70 unrentable l o t s  w i l l  not  a f f e c t  the number o f  

customers t h a t  there were. 

Commission ordered i n  the PAA order as the  refund. So i t  

r e a l l y  i s n ' t  going t o  have any e f f e c t  on the  d o l l a r  amount o f  

the refund, so I misinformed you when I spoke before. 

It won't a f f e c t  the  r a t e  t h a t  the 

MR. BURGESS: And, Commissioner, i f  I might, t h a t  i s  

correct .  I have been corrected t h a t  the  refund i s  based on the 

$6.29 times the  current customers, and would no t  be af fected by 

the imputed revenue, a1 though the going-forward rates would. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: So do the  pa r t i es  s t i p u l a t e  

t o  the f i r s t  one, as we l l?  

MR. BURGESS: Yes. We s t i p u l a t e  t o  the  f i r s t  one. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I ' m  glad a l l  o f  t h a t  has been 

c l a r i f i e d ,  because I was having d i f f i c u l t y  understanding how 

the amount o f  the  refund would change. 

could have an a f f e c t  on going-forward rates,  bu t  I was having 

d i f f i c u l t y  understanding the  connection w i t h  a refund f o r  past 

I can understand how t 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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services. 

Items 1 and 2 under Section 11 o f  the prehearing order. 

So, I t h i n k  we do have a s t i p u l a t i o n  then on both 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: So, Mr. Burgess, do you now 

sgree? 

MR. BURGESS: Yes, s i r .  Yes, Commissioner, we do. 

de s t i p u l a t e  t o  proposed S t i p u l a t i o n  Number 1. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Mr. Friedman? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Cer ta in l y  we s t i p u l a t e  t o  t h a t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Now would be an appropriate 

time t o  take up the s t i pu la t i ons ,  I take it, Mr. Harr is? 

MR. HARRIS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Commissioners, what i s  

your pleasure, do you wish t o  address the proposed s t i pu la t i ons  

2 t  t h i s  t ime or  l a t e r ?  What i s  your pleasure? 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Well, I would j u s t  have one 

question o f  both pa r t i es .  You a l l  are absolutely p o s i t i v e l y  

sure about the s t ipu la t ions? I mean, have you viewed them t o  

the extent that  you are comfortable w i t h  them? And my 

question - -  what my question i s  going a t  i s  t h i s ,  i f  you a l l  

2re comfortable w i t h  the s t i p u l a t i o n s ,  Mr. Burgess - -  
MR. BURGESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: - -  then t h a t  means t h a t  you 

a l l  have adequately viewed and analyzed the data before you, 

and I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  avoid any fu tu re  c o n f l i c t  t h a t  might come 

about as a r e s u l t  o f  someone deciding t h a t  they d i d n ' t  agree 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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v i t h  what they r e a l l y  agreed t o .  

MR. BURGESS: Your po in t  i s  wel l  taken, Commissioner, 

md I appreciate t h a t .  And we do s t i p u l a t e  t o  the proposed 

s t  i pul a t  i on. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: We do, also, Commissioner Bradley. 

rhere i s  an issue about who i s  responsible f o r  making t h a t  

pefund, t h a t  i s  another issue i n  the case. But c e r t a i n l y  as t o  

the amount, we c e r t a i n l y  s t i p u l a t e  t o  t h a t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Commi ss i  oner Davidson. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: That said, I move t h a t  the 

Commi ssion accept Proposed S t i p u l a t i o n  1 and Proposed 

S t ipu la t i on  2 appearing a t  Page 13 o f  the  prehearing order. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: A motion. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I second t h a t  motion. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Moved and seconded. A l l  i n  

favor say aye. 

(Unanimous a f f i r m a t i v e  vote. 1 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Show that  motion ca r r i es  

unanimously. Proposed S t ipu la t i ons  1 and 2 are approved. 

Other pre l iminary matters? 

MS, FLEMING: Yes. Commissioner, we ask t h a t  the  

testimony o f  Kathy L. Welch be inser ted i n t o  the  record as 

though read. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Just a moment, l e t  me get t o  my 

witness l i s t  here. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. FLEMING: This i s  made pursuant t o  S t ipu la t ion  

Number 2. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f  has moved t h a t  we i n s e r t  

i n t o  the record the p r e f i l e d  testimony o f  Witness Kathy L. 

Welch. Since t h a t  has been s t ipu la ted  t o ,  I assume there i s  no 

object ion t o  tha t .  So show then t h a t  t h a t  testimony i s  

inser ted i n t o  the record. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Could I suggest something j u s t  f o r  

consistency, i s  t h a t  when i t  i s  inser ted i n t o  the record t h a t  

it be inser ted maybe a t  the beginning o f  the S t a f f  - -  t h a t  i t  

be inser ted maybe as the S t a f f ' s  f i r s t  witness and not inser ted 

r i g h t  a t  the beginning o f  the t ransc r ip t  j u s t  so t h a t  the case 

flows, our witnesses, Publ ic Counsel, s t a f f ,  rebu t ta l .  So t h a t  

when we read the t ransc r ip t  - -  I ' m  j u s t  doing t h a t  f o r  my own, 

you know, san i ty  when I s i t  down and t r y  t o  read these things. 

To me it helps me i f  i t  i s  i n  order. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I understand. I s  there any 

problem w i t h  the cour t  repor ter  i nse r t i ng  t h a t  i n  t h a t  order as 

l i s t e d  i n  the prehearing order? Show then i t  w i l l  be inser ted 

i n  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  place as consistent w i t h  the l i s t i n g  i n  the 

preheari ng order. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Exhib i ts  f o r  Ms. We1 ch? 

MS. FLEMING: Yes. We ask t h a t  Exh ib i t  KLW-1 be 

marked and i d e n t i f i e d  f o r  the record. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: It w i l l  be i d e n t i f i e d  as 

Hearing Exh ib i t  Number 1. And i t  w i l l  be admitted i n t o  the 

record. 

MR. HARRIS: Commissioner, again, t h a t  w i l l  be w i t h  

her testimony fu r ther  i n  the record, r i g h t ,  f o r  t h e  court  

reporter? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I ' m  sorry? 

MR. HARRIS: I s  t h a t  going t o  be inserted here or  

Mith her testimony fu r ther  i n  the record? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : It doesn ' t real  1 y matter. 

i x h i b i t s  a re  j u s t  i d e n t i f i e d  by number, and i t  i s  what i t  i s .  

Okay. Other pre l iminary matters? 

MS. FLEMING: Yes. Add i t iona l l y ,  S t a f f  has 

i d e n t i f i e d  two exh ib i ts ,  and i t  i s  my understanding t h a t  they 

:an be s t ipu la ted  i n t o  the record by agreement o f  the par t ies .  

\nd those are - -  do the pa r t i es  have any objection? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: We have no object ion.  

MR. BURGESS : We have no ob j e c t i  on, Commi ss i  oner . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: We w i l l  i d e n t i f y  S t a f f  

lomposite Exh ib i t  1 as Hearing Exh ib i t  Number 2, and we w i l l  

i d e n t i f y  S t a f f  Exh ib i t  Number 2 as Hearing Exh ib i t  Number 3. 

\nd show t h a t  Exhib i ts  2 and 3 are admitted. 

(Hearing Exhib i ts  2 and 3 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  

ind admitted i n t o  the record. 1 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Other p re l  iminary matters? 

MS. FLEMING: No, Commissioner, t h a t ' s  a l l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Burgess, do you have any 

Ire1 iminary matters? 

MR. BURGESS: No, Commissioner, other than a t  the 

r o p e r  time I would ask t o  make a b r i e f  opening statement. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . 
Mr. Friedman, any pre l iminary matters? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: No pre l iminary matters. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Mr. Burgess, 

iroceed w i th  your opening statement. I ' m  sorry.  

~ O U  ma- 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: One question. I d o n ' t  want 

:o d is rup t  the f low o f  the openings, but  I wanted t o  get t h i s  

luest ion out there. I f  counsel f o r  both sides could i n  t h e i r  

ipenings, hopefu l ly  a t  the  beginning, address Issues 11 and 12, 

;he ownership issue, i n  r e a l l y  a b r i e f  thes is  sentence, and 

:hen I promise I won't i n t e r r u p t  any o f  the openings. But, f o r  

?xample, the e n t i t i e s  are separate legal  e n t i t i e s  because one, 

;wo, three, and then move on. The e n t i t i e s  are not separate 

iecause o f  one, two, three. Sort  o f  lay out the  thes is  and 

;hen I w i l l  be qu ie t  the  r e s t  o f  the openings. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Commissioner. And, Chairman 

leason, I would suggest t h a t  given t h a t  the u t i l i t y  i s  the one 

Jho protested the  Commission's proposed order and has 

i e t i t i oned  f o r  t h i s  proceeding, t h a t  i t  would be more 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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popular - - popular. 

be l ess  popular - -  i t  would be more proper f o r  the company t o  

proceed w i t h  i t s  opening statement before - - 

It would be more proper - - I hope i t  would 

MR. FRIEDMAN: I don ' t  t h i n k  I ' m  going t o  win a 

popu lar i t y  contest here against you, Steve. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Friedman, I t h i n k  what Mr. 

Burgess i s  saying i s  he th inks you should go f i r s t .  

MR. FRIEDMAN: I t h i n k  he i s  probably r i g h t ,  as hard 

as t h a t  i s  f o r  me t o  agree w i t h  something Mr. Burgess i s  

saying. But I t h i n k  procedural ly i t  does make sense. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

MR. FRIEDMAN: And, Commissioners, we have r e a l l y  

narrowed t h i s  case down i n  the s t a f f - a s s i s t e d  r a t e  case t o  

basi c a l l  y three i ssues . 
issue l a s t ,  since i t  i s  l a s t  on the prehearing. The f i r s t  i s  

t ha t  the  s t a f f  had recommended i n  the  prehearing order i t  does 

not r e f l e c t  any ren t  f o r  t h i s  u t i l i t y .  

I w i  11 address Commi ss i  oner Davi dson ' s 

And I bel ieve t h a t  i t  i s  consistent w i t h  past 

Commission po l i cy ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  s t a f f - a s s i s t e d  r a t e  cases, 

t h a t  even i f  a u t i l i t y  does not book ren t  i n  the  t e s t  year, 

t h a t  i t  has an o f f i c e  and i s  e n J t l e d  t o  some r e n t  expense. 

Mr. Lovelet te w i l l  t e s t i f y  about a ren t  expense t h a t  he 

recommends o f  $300, and he w i l l  advise you about how he came up 

w i th  t h a t  number, which we bel ieve i s  a f a i r  and reasonable 

amount o f  ren t ,  and t h a t  i s  $300 a month. 
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I th ink  tha t  some o f  the S t a f f ' s  e a r l i e r  premise was 

based upon the assumption t h a t  the association owned t h a t  

bu i ld ing.  And I th ink  i t  i s  c lear  now, and Ms. Ke l l e r  

acknowledged t h a t  the associat ion does not own t h a t  bu i ld ing.  

It i s  owned by other par t ies  and i s  being shared by the 

u t i l i t y ,  and therefore the u t i l i t y  i s  e n t i t l e d  t o  ren t  expense. 

They would be paying subs tan t ia l l y  more than $300 a month i f  

they rented - -  there i s  a b u i l d i n g  i n  close proximity,  I don ' t  

know i f  you have been down there, but  there i s  a shopping 

center r i g h t  next door t o  it, and then near the road there are 

some bui ld ings there. And i f  you were t o  ren t  some o f  those 

bui ld ings,  the ren t  would be subs tan t ia l l y  more than $300 a 

nonth. So we th ink  i t  i s  f a i r  t o  a l loca te  $300 a month as a 

reasonable rent .  

The second issue i s  what you have heard a l o t  about, 

dhich i s  the imputed amount o f  revenue a t t r i bu tab le  t o  RV l o t s  

that  are not what we have general ly re fe r red  t o  as i n d i v i d u a l l y  

Dwned, not owned by people t h a t  are l i v i n g  there f u l l - t i m e .  

The rates are based upon those l o t s  having meters on them and 

the owner o f  those l o t s  paying the standard monthly water and 

sewer b i l l  t h a t  everybody e lse  pays. 

The owner o f  those l o t s  has w r i t t e n  and advised the 

J t i l i t y  t h a t  i f  the PSC order goes i n t o  e f f e c t ,  and they are 

required t o  spend $40,000 t o  get meters and t o  pay - - and I 

think I roughly calculated almost ha1 f the revenue requirement 
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for this u t i l i t y  goes t o  these vacant lots,  t h a t  the u t i l i t y  

has been advised by the owner of those lots t h a t  i t  is not 
financially feasible for them t o  continue t o  rent those lots 
w i t h  water and sewer service, and t h a t  i f  this order goes i n t o  
effect they will cease t o  do so. So we have a known change i n  

the future t h a t  the Staff ' s  recommendation and the PAA order 
does not address, and as a result i t  subs tan t ia l ly  understates 
the revenue. 

You will hear either through Mr. Lovelette or Mr. 
Cozier the further explanation of how this is  done. And i f  you 

remember looking a t  t h a t ,  t h a t  plot  p l an ,  or p l a t ,  or whatever 
of the resort, you will notice t h a t  the lots are k ind  of b u i l t  

around circles. And i n  the middle of each of those circles is  
a common bathhouse faci l i ty  w i t h  showers and toi le ts .  So i f  

the owner of those RV lots can continue, i f  he wants t o ,  t o  
rent those lots and those people can utilize those common 
faci l i t ies ,  just like some of the permanent people may utilize 
those common faci l i t ies ,  so he doesn't need water and sewer 
service i n  order t o  rent the RV lots.  And, i n  fact, as I 

mentioned, he is  not going t o  provide water and sewer service 
under the plan  outlined i n  the PAA order because i t  i s  not 
financially feasible for h im t o  do so. 

The last question t h a t  we are addressing i s  the one 
t h a t  Commissioner Davidson asked us t o  address and t h a t  i s  the 
various entities. And through the prefiled testimony and 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

17 

through further testimony today you will see that there i s  an 
en t i ty  called the Nancy Ayers Charitable Remainder Trust. T h a t  

i s  a trust  located up i n  Ind iana ,  and t h a t  entity loaned money 
t o  the Woodlands of Lake Placid t o  purchase property i n  the 
Camp Florida Resort, including the u t i l i t y .  This was back i n  

1995. T h a t  transaction was handled by the trust  as Indiana 

lawyers, and you will see on some of the documents where you 

have t o  l i s t  who the documents were prepared by, you will see 
the Indiana law firm. 

The Nancy Ayers - - when the Wood1 ands q u i t  paying the 
mortgage, charitable trusts have certain responsibilities 
different from others, and their lawyers advised them t h a t  the 
trust could no longer continue t o  hold an asset t h a t  was 
nonperforming and i n  default. So t h a t  note was assigned t o  
Highvest Corporation, and Highvest Corporation i s  owned solely 
by Nancy Ayers indiv idua l ly .  So the note was moved from her 
trust t o  her corporation t h a t  she i n d i v i d u a l l y  owns, and t h a t  
corporation is  Highvest. 

And Highvest Corporation, although you will  hear a 
l o t  of testimony and you wi l l  see this exhibit, t h a t  there 
are - - Mr. Cozier, and Mr. Lovelette, and Ms. Lovelette t o  some 
extent are involved i n  these various legal enti t ies.  The poin t  

t h a t  must be kept i n  mind, however, i s  t h a t  they are separate 
legal enti t ies,  and have separate shareholders, particularly 
w i t h  regard t o  Highvest Corporation. I t s  shareholder has no 
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re la t ionsh ip ,  as you a l l  t h ink  o f  t h a t  term, t o  any o f  the  

other corporations o r  t o  the  ind iv idua ls  I j u s t  mentioned. 

And so o f f i c e r s  and d i rec to r  o f  corporations owe 

f i duc ia ry  dut ies t o  the shareholder o f  the respect ive 

corporation. And i f  they breach t h a t  f i duc ia ry  duty t o  t h a t  

corporation, they can be l i a b l e  personal ly f o r  damages. That 

i s  p a r t i c u l a r l y  t rue  when you have a corporat ion l i k e  Highvest 

that  has loaned money t o  another e n t i t y ,  the Woodlands, i n  

Mhich an o f f i c e r  o f  Highvest also has an ownership i n te res t  i n  

the other e n t i t y .  I n  t h a t  s i t ua t i on  t h a t  person must be 

Dar t i cu la r l y  careful  t o  keep the  respons ib i l i t i es  as an o f f i c e r  

I f  one e n t i t y  separate and d i s t i n c t  from what they may do f o r  

mother e n t i t y .  

And when Highvest foreclosed upon i t s  mortgage, j u s t  

l i k e  you foreclose on a mortgage on a house when somebody 

i a s n ' t  paid, i t  goes t o  the  courthouse steps. Anybody could 

lave b i d  on t h i s  property a t  the  courthouse steps. As i t  turns 

)ut ,  as i s  normally the case, nobody b ids,  and the  lender 

i sua l l y  ends up tak ing  the  proper ty  back. 

As I mentioned, Highvest Corporation i s  owned by 

iancy Ayers. And since Highvest Corporation was not  i n  the  

iusiness o f  running u t i l i t y  systems, i t  t ransferred the  u t i l i t y  

system almost immediately. Ac tua l l y  three, four,  f i v e  days 

la te r  t o  L.P. U t i l i t i e s  Corporation which gave back a note and 

nortgage i n  an amount t h a t  i s  subs tan t i a l l y  equal t o  what t h i s  
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Commission said the rate base was. 
So, Highvest, aga in ,  had t o  be particularly careful 

i n  selling the property t o  another entity t h a t  had a 
relationship w i t h  one of the officers o f  Highvest. Because, 
again,  i f  Highvest would have sold t h a t  property t o  L .P .  

Utilities for less t h a n  a fair  amount of money, then the 
officers of Highvest, i n  particular Mr. Cozier who owns L.P .  

Utilities, would be subjected t o  a breach of fiduciary duty and 

have t o  personally be liable for selling t h a t  property a t  less 
t h a n  the fair  market value. 

So the upshot is  - -  and I believe t h a t  there i s  
Commi ssion precedence t h a t  when property i s forecl osed upon, i f 

there are any del inquent regulatory assessment fees or other 
obl iga t ions ,  t h a t  those obligations remain the obl iga t ion  of 

the party t h a t  was foreclosed upon. T h a t  when you buy 

something a t  a foreclosure sale, you are buying the property 
t h a t  i s  covered by the security interest, the note and 

mortgage, and you are not assuming obl igat ions o f  the person 
who i s  foreclosed upon. 

And so i t  i s  clear t h a t  when t h a t  transaction 
occurred, and we suggest t o  you t h a t  i t  was clearly an 
arm's-length transaction t h a t  had t o  take place because of 

Nancy Ayers being the owner of t h a t  and being represented by 

Indiana lawyers. And, therefore, L .P .  Utilities i s  not legally 
responsible for making t h a t  refund. As has been pointed out 
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e a r l i e r ,  L.P. has been - -  since the PAA order came out, L.P. 

has been deposit ing money i n  escrow i n  accordance w i t h  t h a t  

order. So obviously we are not  t a l k i n g  about any refund t h a t  

i s  going t o  be required as a r e s u l t  o f  the order i f ,  i n  fac t ,  

there i s  a refund, as f a r  as L.P. U t i l i t i e s  i s  concerned. 

We are not saying they are not  ob l igated t o  refund 

the revenue co l lected whi le they were the  owner o f  the u t i l i t y .  

They are going - - i f  you say there i s  a refund, L. P. i s  going 

t o  refund what you say they are e n t i t l e d  t o  refund. L.P. i s  

not l e g a l l y  ob1 igated t o  refund money o f  the Woodlands which 

Mas foreclosed upon. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: M r .  Burgess. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Commissioner. I would l i k e  

to address the issues t h a t  are centra l  t o  the case, those which 

vere addressed by Mr. Friedman. But, f i r s t ,  I would l i k e  t o  

lack up and j u s t  g ive t h i s  a l i t t l e  b i t  o f  context o f  the 

i i s t o r y  o f  the case. It s tar ted  out w i t h  a s t a f f - a s s i s t e d  - -  

as a s t a f f - a s s i s t e d  r a t e  case t h a t  the  u t i l i t y  pe t i t i oned  f o r ,  

and the S t a f f  came i n  and d id  i t s  analysis,  and ar r i ved  a t  a 

zonclusion and the Commission presented t h a t  as a proposed 

agency ac t  i on. 

Now, a f t e r  the PAA came out, we spoke w i t h  the 

xstomers, and you have heard the  testimony o f  some o f  the 

xstomers t h a t  bas i ca l l y  there were areas where they d i d  not  

igree w i t h  the  PAA. There were areas t h a t  they thought the PAA 
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perhaps could have been a l i t t l e  b i t  more aggressive i n  their 
favor, bu t  they recognized, and i n  our discussions w i t h  them 

are matters of subjectivity, and 

n interests, competing interests 
and so t h a t  the end product is  
and i t  was a compromise they were 

wi l l ing  t o  accept. They said even though we have some problems 
w i t h  individual  issues, we accept the t o t a l i t y  of the proposed 
agency action. 

The u t i l i t y ,  on the other hand, d id  not. The u t i l i t y  

the proposed agency action for the Staff-assisted 
t h a t  i t  petitioned for. And i t  has raised a few 
'he primary one, though, i s  the one t h a t  Mr. Friedman 
most time t a l k i n g  about,  and i s  very unique. 
- - very unique, i f  t h a t  i s  not a redundancy - - 
w h a t  you have is  the u t i l i t y  saying we are not 
t o  refund a refund ob l iga t ion  incurred by the 

predecessor u t i l i t y ,  by the u t i l i t y  t h a t  was providing service 
before we are. We do not - - we are not ob1 igated t o  do so. 
And the reason t h a t  t h a t  i s  such a remarkable argument, f i r s t ,  
because as i n  any other circumstance when you transfer, there 
are a number of obligations t h a t  are incurred just like, for 
example, a successor u t i  1 i t y  col 1 ects revenues for some period 
of time for service t h a t  was provided by the predecessor 
uti l i ty.  B u t  besides t h a t ,  i n  this case i t  i s  a very unique 
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circumstance because the  predecessor u t i  1 i ty ,  Wood1 ands 

U t i l i t y ,  Woodlands was owned by Mr. Cozier, i t  was run by Mr. 

Lovelette, the u t i l i t y  assets i t  received were based on a loan 

f o r  which a mortgage was held, and the mortgagee was Highvest. 

The president o f  Highvest i s  Mr. Cozier, the  owner o f  the 

u t i l i t y .  The current u t i l i t y ,  the successor u t i l i t y ,  L.P. 

U t i l i t i e s ,  i s  owned by Mr. Cozier. It i s  run by Mr. Lovelette. 

I t s  u t i l i t y  assets are subject t o  a mortgage t h a t  i s  held by 

Highvest, which i s  a corporation the president o f  which i s  Mr. 

Cozier, the owner o f  the  u t i l i t y .  

The on ly  reason t h a t  the new u t i l i t y  was created was 

t o  avoid the f inanc ia l  ob l igat ions incurred by the predecessor 

u t i l i t y .  So f o r  the company t o  come i n  now and say we know 

there i s  a refund ob l iga t ion ,  bu t  i t  was incurred by the 

previous company, i t  wouldn't  be f a i r  t o  impose t h a t  on us i s  

more than remarkable. It i s  absurd. 

Now, we have ra ised a f t e r  the  proposed agency act ion 

was protested by the u t i l i t y ,  one o f  the  issues they ra ised was 

the proper leve l  o f  cont r ibut ions i n  a id  o f  cont r ibut ion.  And 

as a r e s u l t  o f  t h a t  we ra ised an issue i n d i c a t i n g  t h a t  the 

proposed agency act ion ac tua l l y  overstated the  r a t e  base by 

understat ing the  contr ibut ions i n  a i d  o f  construction. I n  

order t o  expla in  t h i s ,  I ' m  going t o  go i n t o  a l i t t l e  b i t  o f  the 

background t h a t  you have already heard from the  testimony o f  

Ms. Ke l l e r ,  and t h a t  i s  t h a t  what we have i s  a constituency o f  
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customers that are comprised of two fundamental groups, one of 
which are the property owners that own their individual lots, 
and that constitutes a substantial minority of the customers 
that are being served. And the second constituency are rental 
lots, and the rental lots are owned by Highvest Company of 
which Mr. Cozier is president. 

Now, the utility was ordered to place meters for all 
of its service. And it placed meters for the most part on all 
of the privately owned lots, and for those areas that are 
common areas for which the property owners association picks u 
the cost. For each of these meters, the company also collected 
or billed the customers the cost of the meter. Actually a 

little bit more than the cost of the meter. So that when the 
meters 
the 

bills are fully collected, what they will have for these 
i s  the entire amount of the cost of the meters offset by 
XAC col 1 ected from the customers. 

Now, in addition to that amount that is basica 
Dffset with the customers, with the meter costs for the 

ly an 

xstomers and the contributions offsetting, in the PAA it 
pecognized a pro forma adjustment for the cost of the meters 
for the other lots that were being required. Now as of today, 
those meters still have not been put in. However, the pro 
forma adjustment for the cost of those meters is in the rate 
lase that we are dealing with right now and that was in the 
)AA. The contribution that would be or should be collected to 
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o f f se t  those, s im i la r  t o  the contr ibut ions t h a t  were co l lected 

from the owners o f  the  other l o t s ,  those contr ibut ions were not 

recognized i n  the  PAA as a pro forma. So what you have i s  a 

s i t ua t i on  w i th  the  PAA where the current  - -  where the p r i v a t e l y  

owned l o t s  are paying f o r  t h e i r  own meters as a complete 

o f f se t ,  and by inc lud ing  i n  the r a t e  base a pro forma f o r  the 

meters f o r  the ren ta l  l o t s ,  t ha t  i s  being spread across these 

customers, too.  So they have had t o  pay f o r  t h e i r  own meters 

and then they have the  meters o f  the  ren ta l  l o t s  included i n  

the establishment o f  the  ra te .  

Now, t h i s  i s  j u s t  wrong. This i s  c l e a r l y  wrong. It 

r e a l l y  - - e i t he r  the  pro forma needs t o  be reversed or  the  

contr ibut ions i n  a i d  f o r  the  addi t ional  meters need t o  be 

ref lected.  And I w i l l  say t h a t  i f  you look a t  S t a f f ' s  pos i t i on  

on t h i s  issue, they agree w i th  our pos i t ion .  

And, what I want t o  say, f i r s t ,  though l e t  me as an 

aside say t h a t  I commend S t a f f ,  and I th ink  the  Commission 

should commend i t s  s t a f f  f o r  remaining openminded on t h i s  

issue, f o r  being w i l l i n g  t o  reexamine t h i s  issue. And as they 

have reexamined it, they have concluded tha t ,  i n  fac t ,  t h i s  

adjustment should be made. 

it, and raised i t  i n  a pa r t i cu la r  way t h a t  we were seeking t o  

try t o  avoid r a t e  case expense. 

It i s  over $30,000. And we ra ised 

We were so concerned espec ia l l y  w i th  t h i s  small a 

company about r a t e  case expense being fo i s ted  onto the 
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customers by decisions made by the utilities, that we said we 
are not even looking for the Commission to necessarily make 
this adjustment, but just to hold this back as an adjustment to 
be made to other issues, if you feel like the PAA should be 
adjusted otherwise in some of the other issues that are raised. 
And we did that for the explicit purpose of trying to avoid 
rate case expense. 

We brought it out in the hope that the utility would 
see this issue, would see the validity of this issue, would see 
that the issue offsets the issues that they raised, and would 
say we're not going to go forward with our issue. But, no, 
they have, as you can hear from Mr. Friedman and from the very 
fact that we are here, they have come forward. They have come 
forward to push their issue on the refund, that they shouldn't 
be required to make the refund. 

And so what we ask is that you consider this now at 
this point, since we are already here, since we have already 
incurred the expense, I would ask the Commission to go ahead 
and make the CIAC adjustment. There is no additional rate case 
expense associated with it with the company responding to it, 
so I would ask that the Commission go ahead and make that CIAC 
adjustment as well as making the adjustments for the issues 
that have been raised by the customers in the customer 
test i mony . 

But I would ask you to consider one other thing, as 
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wel l .  

e f f o r t  t o  t r y  t o  show the company tha t  we had issues tha t  went 

the other way, and tha t  these issues are v a l i d  issues, the  

company i s  pressing f o r t h  w i t h  i t s  case and i s  spending money. 

And they a re  asking these customers t o  pay f o r  t h a t  case. And 

so I ask you when you get t o  the  r a t e  case expense issue t h a t  

you th ink  about tha t ,  too. That you keep t h a t  i n  mind, too. 

That we have done everything we can. The customers d i d  

everything they could t o  keep from having t o  pay r a t e  case 

I would ask you t o  consider t h a t  notwithstanding our 

t h  the  cost o f  

sed issues t h a t  

expense, and they shouldn't  be now burdened w 

the company coming forward w i t h  these i l l - a d v  

they have raised. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f ,  do you 

statement? 

MR. HARRIS: S t a f f  does not have an 

statement. Thank you. 

have an opening 

opening 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I bel ieve we have reached the 

phase where we can swear i n  the  witnesses t h a t  are l i s t e d  i n  

the prehearing statement. So I'm going t o  ask a l l  the  

Nitnesses who w i l l  be t e s t i f y i n g  i n  the  technical  phase o f  the 

hearing t o  please stand and ra i se  your r i g h t  hand. 

(Witnesses c o l l e c t i v e l y  sworn. 1 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Friedman, I bel ieve your 

witness i s scheduled f i  r s t  . 
MR. FRIEDMAN: Yes. Mr. John Lovelet te.  
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JOHN H. LOVELElTE 

was ca l led  as a witness on behal f  o f  Highvest/L.P. U t i l i t i e s  

and, having been du ly  sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fo l lows: 

DIRECT EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. FRIEDMAN: 

Q Mr. Lovelette, would you please s ta te  your name and 

give us your business address. 

A My name i s  John H. Lovelette, spel led 

L-0-V-E-L-E-T-T-E. My business address i s  100 Shoreline Drive, 

Lake Placid, F lor ida.  

Q And, Mr. Lovelette, have you p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  

testimony i n  t h i s  proceeding? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q 

A Yes, I do, s i r .  

Q Consist ing o f  f i v e  pages? 

A Yes. 

Q 

And do you have a copy o f  t h a t  before you? 

And i f  I asked you each o f  those questions, Mr. 

-ovelette, would you answer the  same as i n  your p r e f i l e d  

testimony? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you have any changes or  correct ions t o  your 

i r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  testimony? 

A No, s i r .  

(REPORTER NOTE: For the convenience o f  the record, 
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the p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  testimony o f  John Lovelet te i s  inser ted 

i n to  the  record.) 
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TESTIMONY OF JOHN LOVELETTE 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

REGARDING THE STAFF ASSISTED RATE CASE 

HIGHLANDS COUNTY 

BY L.P. UTILITES CORPORATION 

AND 

HIGHVEST CORPORATION 

DOCKET NO. 020010-WS 

Q. 

A. 

Please state your name, occupation and business address for the record. 

My name is John Lovelette. As it relates to this case, I am a Director of L.P. Utilities 

Corporation, the current owner of the water and wastewater assets formerly owned 

by The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P. 

Are you familiar with an entity called “The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P.”? 

Yes, I am. That is a limited partnership with a Florida corporation named Camper 

Corral, Inc., as its general partner. Anthony Cozier is the President and sole 

shareholder of Camper Corral, Inc. 

Do you hold any position with The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P., or Camper 

Corral, Inc.? 

I was employed by The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P., as its manager. I am not a 

partner nor have I ever been a partner in The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P. I have 

not held any office with Camper Corral, Inc. 

Are you familiar with the mortgage given by The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P., 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
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which was subsequently assigned to Highvest Corporation? 

Yes, I am. In connection with the purchase of The Woodlands development, 

including the utility, The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P., borrowed the purchase 

price from the Nancy Ayers Charitable Remainder Trust, and executed a mortgage 

to the Trust. That Trust is unrelated to The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P., Camper 

A. 

Corral, Inc., or L.P. Utilities Corporation. When that mortgage went into default, 

there were some issues regarding the Trust holding a non-performing asset, and the 

mortgage was assigned to Highvest Corporation, ofwhich Nancy Ayers, individually, 

is the sole shareholder. Anthony Cozier is President of Highvest Corporation and I 

am Vice-president. 

Since you and Mr. Cozier were involved in managing The Woodlands of Lake Placid Q. 

L.P., why would you foreclose the mortgage as that business’ asset? 

As officers of Highvest Corporation, we have a fiduciary duty to the shareholder, and 

since The Woodlands of Lake Placid, L.P., could not pay the mortgage, which was 

on the real estate as well as the utility assets, we had no option but to foreclose. They 

are separate entities with separate owners, and thus, separate interests. 

What transpired as a result of the foreclosure action? 

On July 3,2002, a foreclosure complaint was filed with regard to that mortgage and 

a Final Judgment was entered by the circuit judge on August 7,2002. The property, 

which consisted of the real estate and utility assets, was sold on the courthouse steps 

at a public sale, on September 4, 2002. AS is typically the case, no one bid more 

than the amount of the Final Judgment and Highvest Corporation purchased the 

A. 

Q. 

A. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

property, which included the utility system. Since Highvest Corporation is not in the 

business of operating utility systems, nor did it want to, it conveyed the utility assets 

almost immediately to L.P. Utilities Corporation and tookback aNote and Mortgage. 

Highvest Corporation kept the development lots. 

Are you familiar with L.P. Utilities Corporation? 

Yes, I, along with my wife and Mr. Cozier, am a director of that corporation. The 

corporation is owned by Anbeth Corporation which is owned by Mr. and Mrs. 

Cozier, who are also the directors. 

Do you dispute the amount of revenue which the Commission Staff believes will be 

received by L.P. Utilities, Inc., from the Resort's rental R.V. lots. 

Yes, I do. The owner of the R.V. lots has advised that it will physically disconnect 

those lots from the water and wastewater system. Thus, it is in appropriate to impute 

any revenue to the R.V. park. 

Does the Utility operate out of an office? 

Yes, the Utility shares an office with the Camp Florida Sales Office. 

Does the Utility pay rent for use of that office? 

They have not since taking over the Utility on October 1'' of last year because there 

have been insufficient funds with which to do so. 

What do you believe to be a reasonable rent? 

Based upon comparable office space, reasonable rent is $300.00 per month. 

Has the law firm of Rose, Sundstrom & Bentley, LLP, been retained to represent the 

Utility in this proceeding? 
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A. Yes. And we have agreed to pay $225 per hour plus reimbursement of reasonable 

expenses. 

Do you have an estimate of rate case expense to complete this proceeding through 

final Commission action? 

Yes, we estimate legal rate case expense in the amount of $60,000.00. 

Have you compared the revenues which the Utility would have received based upon 

the metered rates with the flat rate which the Utility was previously charging. 

Yes. In October, 2002, based upon the flat rate the Utility would have received 

$6,326.00, and based upon the PSC recommended rates, the Utility would have 

received $7,420.26. Thus, the Utility had a deficit of $1,094.26 for October, 2002. 

In November, 2002, the flat rate would have yielded revenues of $6,326.00 and the 

metered rates would have yielded revenue of $7,649.74 for a deficit of $1,323.74. 

In December, 2002, the flat rate would have yielded revenues of $6,326.00, and the 

metered rates would have yielded revenues of $9,907.52 for a deficit of $3,581.52. 

The total deficit for the quarter was $4,691.52. Since the flat rates yielded less 

revenues that the metered rates, how could the Utility’s existing rates be excessive, 

and thus subject to refund? 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 
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Q Could you, then, take a very short  per iod o f  time, 

less than f i v e  minutes, and b r i e f l y  summarize f o r  the 

Commissioners your p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  testimony? 

A I n  my testimony t h a t  I p r e f i l e d  here i t  states t h a t  I 

was employed as manager a t  the Woodlands o f  Lake Placid, which 

vas a l i m i t e d  partnership, and I was employed as a manager, o r  

my pos i t i on  there was a manager w i t h  them. Woodlands o f  Lake 

Placid was a separate e n t i t y ,  and t h a t  i t  came about i n  1995. 

It s tar ted  when they purchased property t h a t  was adjacent t o  

Camp Flor ida Resort and also which included the  u t i l i t i e s .  

There was a wastewater treatment p l  ant 1 ocated nor th  o f  Camp 

F1 or ida Resort and i t  served so le l y  the Camp F1 or ida Resort. 

The property was mortgaged. The loan came from Nancy 

4yers Remainder Trust .  She a t  t h a t  t ime was the  sole owner, 

the t r u s t  was the sole owner o f  Highvest Corporation, who held 

the mortgage. And dur ing the h i s to ry ,  Woodlands was s t a r t i n g  

to de fau l t  on t h e i r  loans, was not making payments, and the 

t rus t  wanted t o  ask questions o f ,  o r  Highvest asked questions 

)f Woodlands why. 

And a lso I am the v ice president o f  Highvest and 

J i rector ,  and as such we have a duty t o  our shareholders t o  

nanage the propert ies.  And i t  became a decis ion o f  Highvest 

that we needed t o  foreclose on the Woodlands, t h a t  i t  was 

ionperforming. 

rh is  took place t h i s  year. 

So we proceeded i n  a foreclosure act ion there. 
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And, l e t ' s  see, what e lse  d i d  we have i n  my 

testimony? I t e s t i f i e d ,  p r e t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  I am w i t h  L.P. 

U t i l i t i e s .  Current ly  I am a d i r e c t o r  w i t h  L.P. U t i l i t i e s  

inlhich i s  the current owner o f  the u t i l i t i e s  t h a t  services 

F lo r ida  Resort and two o f  the surrounding subdivisions, p 

couple o f  commercial propert ies.  This u t i l i t y  o r  the 

Camp 

us a 

zorporation was formed a number o f  years ago i n  an t i c ipa t i on  o f  

mrchasing u t i 1  i t i e s  i n  the surrounding area. 

One o f  the th ings I also  t e s t i f i e d  i n  my p r e f i l e d  

testimony was t h a t  the amount o f  r e n t  t h a t  was based, and I 

feel t h a t  $300 was a f a i r  amount. I n  the  surrounding area, 

there i s  a - -  i n  f a c t ,  i t  i s  r i g h t  across the s t r e e t  from our 

i f f i c e  t h a t  we occupy, there i s  a b u i l d i n g  t h a t  i s  o f  s i m i l a r  

Zonstruction i t  i s  next t o  a Kash N Kary grocery s tore - - 
MR. BURGESS: Excuse me. Commissioners, I hate t o  do 

:his, bu t  t h i s  i s  beyond the testimony i t s e l f .  This p a r t i c u l a r  

lestimony t h a t  M r .  Lovelet te i s  o f f e r i n g  now i s  not  included i n  

l i s  p r e f i l e d  testimony. The general no t ion  o f  the  ren ta l  

igreement and h i s  statement t h a t  i t  i s  $300 a month i s  

%easonable i s ,  bu t  the comparison t o  other rea l  estate i n  the 

r e a  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  i s  i n  the p r e f i l e d  testimony. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Friedman, there i s  an 

ib ject ion,  i t  goes beyond the scope o f  the  p r e f i l e d .  

MR. FRIEDMAN: Well, he i s  j u s t  expla in ing the $300. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Does h i s  testimony mention the 
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basis f o r  the $300, h i s  p r e f i l e d ?  

MR. FRIEDMAN: His testimony does not,  t h a t  i s  

correct .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The object ion i s  sustained. 

Mr. Lovelette, you needed t o  wrap up your summary. 

THE WITNESS: One o f  the th ings i n  there t h a t  I 

p r e f i l e d  testimony t h a t  we dispute the amount o f  revenue t h a t  

L.P. U t i l i t i e s  w i l l  receive from the  ren ta l  l o t s .  We have 

received from the owner o f  the ren ta l  l o t s  t h a t  i f  the order i s  

continued t h a t  they have determined t h a t  i t  i s  economically 

in feas ib le  f o r  them t o  continue t o  pay, and so they w i l l  

dithdraw service from the  u t i l i t y  which w i l l  r e s u l t  i n  a 

substantial loss o f  revenue t o  the  u t i l i t y  a t  t h a t  t ime. 

There are other minor po in ts  i n  there, i n  my p r e f i l e d  

testimony about the r a t e  case expense o r  the expense t h a t  we 

w e  going t o  incur ,  t h a t  I bel ieve I estimated a $60,000 

f igure.  This was based on a pre l iminary number t h a t  was given 

to me by our at torney t h a t  represents us. B r i e f l y  t h a t  i s  the  

statement. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Does t h a t  conclude your 

summary? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The witness i s  tendered f o r  

zross exami nation? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: That i s  correct .  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Mr. Burgess. 

MR. BURGESS: I d o n ' t  know whether S t a f f  wants t o  go 

f i r s t  o r  wants me t o  go f i r s t .  E i ther  way, i t  doesn't  matter. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f ,  do you have a 

preference? 

MR. HARRIS: I t h i n k  t r a d i t i o n a l l y  OPC, as a party,  

would go before S t a f f .  

MR. BURGESS: That 's  f i n e .  Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Mr. Lovelette, as I understand it, you are v ice 

president o f  Highvest, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And are you also known as o r  t i t l e d  rea l  estate 

p ro jec t  manager o f  H i  ghvest? 

A Yes. 

Q And i n  t h a t  regard, are you a l icensed rea l  estate 

broker o r  anything, l icensed by the  s ta te  i n  any fashion i n  

t h i s  regard? 

A I am l icensed by the  s ta te  as a land surveyor, but  

I ' m  not a l icensed rea l  estate broker. 

Q Thank you. Let me ask you about the  - -  what I ' m  

going t o  do i s  ask some questions about L.P. U t i l i t i e s  and 

Woodlands. Up u n t i l  what po in t  d i d  Woodlands provide water and 

wastewater service t o  the  Camp F lo r ida  Resort? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A 

Q 

A 

Up u n t i l  the time i t  was foreclosed. 

And do you have a sense as t o  when t h a t  was? 

The sale o f  the property took place, I bel ieve, i n  

the l a t t e r  pa r t  o f  September. Without looking a t  the document, 

don ' t  know the exact date. I don ' t  r e c a l l .  

I ' m  sorry,  September o f  what year? Q 

A 2002. 

Q Thank you. Now, can you t e l l  me - -  and you worked as 

nanager o f  Woodlands o f  Lake Placid,  L.P., the former u t i l i t y ?  

A I managed the day-to-day operations o f  Woodlands, the 

i t i l i t y  par t .  

Q 

Jti 1 i ti es? 

Do you manage the day-to-day operations o f  L.P. 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And L.P. U t i l i t i e s  i s  the  u t i l i t y  cu r ren t l y  prov id ing 

A 

ianaged, 

;ervice f o r  Camp F lo r ida  Resort, i s  t h a t  correct? 

Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Excuse me. Did you say 

E-D ,  or  manage? 

THE WITNESS: I ' m  not  a l icensed operator. We 

contracted t o  h i r e  two l icensed operators. I 

say, I manage the  day-to-day operations, the  

l ec t i ons  and th ings l i k e  tha t .  I s  t h a t  what 

s i r ?  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Well, I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  out 

l i r e  - -  .re have 

wersee, l i k e  I 

i i l l i n g ,  the  co 

'ou are asking, 
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i f  you are managing both simultaneously, o r  i f  you are 

managing - - you have i n  the  past managed one, and now you are 

managing the other. 

THE WITNESS: I n  the past. I ceased t o  manage the 

Wood1 ands a t  the foreclosure, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q And am I cor rec t  t h a t  Woodlands o f  Lake Plac id  was a 

partnership, and i t s  two partners were Camper Corral and Mr. 

Cozier? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Am I correct  t h a t  Mr. Cozier was the sole owner o f  

:amper Corral? 

A I bel ieve t h a t  i s  t rue ,  s i r .  

Q So as we run through the various legal  e n t i t i e s ,  Mr. 

:ozier was the owner o f  Woodlands o f  Lake Placid,  i s  t h a t  

zorrect? 

A There was two e n t i t i e s .  It was a l i m i t e d  

Iar tnersh i  p. 

Q And the two l i m i t e d  partners were Camper Corral ,  

vhich was owned by Mr. Cozier, and the other partner was Mr. 

:ozi er? 

A That i s  cor rec t ,  s i r .  

Q Now, i s  i t  t r u e  t h a t  the  Woodlands o f  Lake Plac id  

iwned the assets t h a t  were used t o  provide u t i l i t y  service? 
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A Yes, s i r .  

Q And d i d  they own them subject t o  a mortgage t h a t  was 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 
A 

Q 
iecausl 

i e l  d by H i  ghvest Company? 

Yes, s i r .  

I s  Mr. Cozier president o f  Highvest Company? 

Yes, s i r .  

And you are v i ce  president? 

Yes, s i r .  

And Highvest Company foreclosed on 

Woodlands o f  Lake P lac id  could no t  m 

t h a t  mortgage 

e t  i t s  f inanc i  1 

i b l i ga t i ons  t o  Highvest as mortgagee, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A That i s  cor rec t ,  s i r .  

Q Subsequently, Highvest sold the  u t i l i t y  assets t o  

-.P. U t i l i t i e s ,  i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And L.P. U t i l i t i e s  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I ' m  sorry ,  Mr. Burgess, l e t  me 

jsk a question. 

MR. BURGESS: P1 ease. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The mortgage was defaul ted 

ipon, correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And I assume t h a t  meant the 

nortgage payments simply were not  made? 

THE WITNESS: That i s  correct ,  s i r .  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Who made the dec is ion not t o  

make the  mortgage payments? 

THE WITNESS: Well, there was no money t o  pay t h a t  

mortgage. There were ce r ta in  b i l l s  t h a t  we cou ldn ' t  pay, so we 

s l i d  on payments t h a t  we could. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: You say we, who i s  we? 

THE WITNESS: The o f f i c e r s  and d i rec to rs .  I n  t h i s  

case i n  Woodlands, the owner o f  Woodlands. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h a t  i s ?  

THE WITNESS: Camper Corral and Mr. Cozier. 

3Y MR. BURGESS: 

Q And so Highvest U t i l i t i e s  - -  I mean, Highvest 

:orporation so ld u t i l i t y  assets t o  L.P. U t i l i t i e s ,  i s  t h a t  

:orrect? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And Highvest Corporation took back a mortgage on 

:hose assets f o r  the note? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q L.P. U t i l i t i e s  i s  - -  you have t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  you run 

:he day-to-day operations o f  L.P. U t i l i t i e s ?  

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And L.P. U t i l i t i e s  i s  owned by Anbeth Corporation, i s  

;hat correct? 

A Yes, s i r ,  they are. 

Q And Anbeth Corporation i s  owned by M r .  and Mrs. 
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Cozier, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q With regard t o  the CIAC,  the contr ibut ions i n  a i d  o f  

construct ion - - 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Excuse me, Counsel, can I ask 

a question before we move i n t o  t h a t  - -  
MR. BURGESS: Please. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: 

Deason ' s question regardi ng the mortgage. 

- - t o p i c  re la ted  t o  Chairman 

Did Woodlands ever go through any type o f  bankruptcy 

proceeding? 

THE WITNESS: No, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Were i t s  debts ever formal ly  

o r  ob l igat ions ever formal ly  discharged o r  released by a court? 

THE WITNESS: No, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: I f  you could expla in  t o  me 

j u s t  s o r t  o f  fac tua l l y ,  given the  imi lar i ty o f  ownership and 

management between Woodlands and L P . ,  what i n  your mind caused 

you t o  t h i n k  t h a t  poss ib ly  the ob1 gations o f  Woodlands would 

not become the obl igat ions o f  L.P. U t i l i t i e s ?  I mean, s o r t  o f  

w a l  k me through your thought process. 

THE WITNESS: They are two separate e n t i t i e s .  It i s  

completely separate and not  re la ted  other than there may be 

some same people e i t h e r  as partners o r  o f f i c e r s  and d i rec to rs .  

Woodlands was foreclosed by Highvest, which has a separate 
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owner, a s ing le  owner, and i t  was foreclosed and sold on the 

courthouse steps s im i la r  as a bank would foreclose on a 

property. And then the bank would have turned over the 

property, so ld  i t , t o  which Highvest did. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who i s  Nancy Ayers and what 

i s  her re la t i onsh ip  t o  the  various pa r t i es  here? 

THE WITNESS: She i s  an ind iv idua l  t h a t  resides i n  

the Indianapol is area i n  Indiana, has no re la t ionsh ip ,  i s  not 

re la ted  t o  myself o r  t o  Mr. Cozier. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: How was she involved i n  thes 

transactions? I mean, I know she was the sole shareholder o f  

Highvest, bu t  what was her ro le?  Why d i d  she j u s t  s o r t  o f  

disappear out o f  the p ic tu re?  She doesn't  appear as a partner, 

a d i rec to r ,  a manager o f  Woodlands, and L.P. U t i l i t i e s ,  and 

Camper Corral , and Anbeth. 

out o f  these other e n t i t i e s .  

I mean, she j u s t  seems t o  disappear 

THE WITNESS: She i s  not  involved i n  t h a t .  Highvest 

i s  a corporat ion t h a t  she has as the owner, i t  i s  a rea l  estate 

devel opment - - 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Do you know her? 

THE WITNESS: I have not personal ly met her t o  my 

knowledge, although there has been - -  I personal ly don ' t  t h i n k  

I have met her. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 
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Q Mr. Lovelette, you have answered i n  response t o  both 

Commissioner Davidson and e a r l i e r  t o  Commissioner Deason t h a t  

Woodlands could not make the payments on i t s  ob l iga t ion  t o  

Highvest and, therefore,  Highvest foreclosed on the mortgage. 

How long had Woodlands not been making payments, f u l l  payments 

on the outstanding ob1 igat ions t o  Highvest? 

A Without looking a t  a bank account t o  see, I d o n ' t  

know exact ly.  But, l i k e  I say, the loan had been i n  service 

since 1995 when i t  was o r i g i n a l l y  w i th  the remainder t r u s t ,  and 

then i t  was t ransferred over t o  Highvest Corporation as Nancy 

Ayers i nd i v idua l l y .  

Q And f o r  how long d i d  Woodlands make the payments t h a t  

i t  was ob l igated under the mortgage i n i t i a l l y  t o  the remainder 

t r u s t  and then subsequently t o  Highvest a f t e r  t h a t  i n t e r e s t  was 

t ransferred? 

A I ' m  sorry, I don ' t  qu i te  understand your question. 

Q Was Woodlands ever i n  compliance w i t h  the terms o f  

the note on which i t  borrowed the money from - -  i n i t i a l l y  from 

the remainder t r u s t  and subsequently owed t o  Highvest 

Corporation? Did Wood1 ands ever make payments? 

A 

Q 

I bel ieve they d id ,  yes. 

For how long d i d  they make payments before they began 

f a i l i n g  t o  meet t h e i r  ob l igat ion? 

A I don ' t  know. It was sporadic, not  on a regular 

basis. 
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Q So they made payments sometimes and d i d n ' t  make 
iayments sometimes? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q 
A 

When d i d  they f i r s t  not make a payment? 
I cannot give you a date. I d o n ' t  write the checks. 

[ have no idea on t h a t .  

Q B u t  you are vice president of Highvest and you do run 
:he day-to-day operation, d id  run the day-to-day operations of 

Joodl ands? 
A I managed the operations of Woodlands such as 

-epai rs , mai ntenance, col 1 ecti ng o f  bi 1 1 s . 
Q What I'm just trying t o  get an idea for the 

:ommission i s  an idea o f  how much forbearance Highvest showed 
iefore i t  foreclosed on the mortgage. Did i t  foreclose w i t h i n  

:wo missed payments, d i d  i t  foreclose after a year, d i d  i t  

'oreclose 30 days after the f i r s t  missed payment? 
A No, i t  was sometime - - i t  was a secured mortgage, and 

;here was nothing t h a t  was jeopardizing the secured mortgage up 

i n t i 1  just recently when there was a judgment filed against 
Joodl ands. 

Q So there was some - -  
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Mr. Burgess, please, one 

question. 
MR. BURGESS: Yes, please. 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: And I apologize i f  counsel 
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has covered t h i s .  Were you the day-to-day manager o f  Highvest? 

THE WITNESS: I worked f o r  Highvest. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: We1 1, who was the day- to -day  

manager, you or  Mr. Cozier? 

THE WITNESS: We both are. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who made the decis ion t o  

foreclose, who you a c t u a l l y  said, you know what, we have got t o  

foreclose? 

THE WITNESS: 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who made t h a t  decision, who 

It was a corporate decision. 

pa r t i c i pa ted  i n  the  decision? 

THE WITNESS: It was a corporate decis ion by o f f i c e r s  

and d i rec to rs ,  and I imagine the owner, a lso.  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: When was i t  made? 

THE WITNESS: Probably i n  2002. That ' s  when we 

s ta r ted  the foreclosure procedures. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: When i n  2002? 

THE WITNESS: May I look? 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Sure, absolutely.  

THE WITNESS: On J u l y  3rd, 2002 a foreclosure 

complaint was f i l e d .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who f i l e d  the  complaint? 

THE WITNESS: Highvest Corporation. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who on behal f  o f  Highvest? 

Who ac tua l l y  signed the complaint? 
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THE WITNESS: I don ' t  have t h a t  i n  f r o n t  o f  me, so I 

c a n ' t  t e l l  you. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: We can ask t h a t  same question 

o f  M r .  Cozier. 

and c i  rcumstances surrounding t h i s  deci sion t o  fo rec l  ose. Was 

the i n i t i a l  decision made a t  a face- to - face  meeting o f  the 

d i rec to rs  and managers? 

I f  I could a few more questions on the fac ts  

THE WITNESS: We met, yes. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Where? 

THE WITNESS: I n  our o f f i c e  i n  Lake Placid.  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Do you r e c a l l  the t ime frame, 

generally? 

THE WITNESS: It would be p r i o r  t o  Ju ly .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: And who f i r s t  ra ised the  idea 

I f  the  foreclosure? Did you r a i s e  it, d i d  Mr. Cozier r a i s e  it, 

j i d  your w i f e  r a i s e  it? 

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  know, i t  was probably Mr. 

zozi e r  . 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: And what were some o f  the  

-easons t h a t  he gave f o r  the  foreclosure? Just t e l l  me - -  I 
vi11 l e t  you t a l k .  T e l l  me what you can about t h a t  meeting, 

vhat was said, the reasons given f o r  the  foreclosure, what the 

iusiness s t ra tegy would be going forward, why t h i s  was being 

jone, e t  cetera. 

THE WITNESS: Wel l ,  t he  mortgage was a secured 
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iortgage up u n t i l  the t ime o f  - -  there  was a judgment f i l e d  

lgainst - - Woodlands was one o f  the  named p a r t i e s ,  and so then 

:hat jeopardized the mortgage. That was the  reasoning why, one 

if the reasons why. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Counsel o r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Explain t o  me how the judgment 

ihreatened the secu r i t y  you had i n  the form o f  a mortgage on 

\ea1 property? 

THE WITNESS: Well, there was a judgment against the 

Joodlands and it was p a r t  o f  the  named s u i t ,  and I don ' t  know 

;he exact f i gu re ,  bu t  i t  was over $100,000 o r  something l i k e  

;hat, i n  t h a t  neighborhood. And t h a t  Woodlands had no means t o  

lay t h a t  amount o f  money. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But as mortgage holder you had 

' i r s t  c la im on the  value o f  those assets, d i d  you not,  t h a t  

-ea1 property? 

THE WITNESS: I bel ieve  t h a t  i s  t rue .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commissioner Bradley, I th ink ,  

ias a question. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Yes. I need t o  c lear  up 

something i n  my mind. Debt service. 

to be pa id  o r  f o r  the  debt t o  be serviced, you would have t o  

lave s u f f i c i e n t  cash f low. Can you expla in  maybe why there was 

l o t  s u f f i c i e n t  cash f low i n  order t o  service the  debt? 

I n  order f o r  the  mortgage 

THE WITNESS: We1 1 , the only  source o f  income was 
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from the  water and sewer income, the payments on the water and 

sewer. That was the only  source o f  income t h a t  Woodlands had. 

And so i f  there was i n s u f f i c i e n t  funds coming i n  from payments 

on water and sewer - -  
COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. I s  there any pa r t i cu la r  

reason why - -  can you give me a reason as t o  maybe why the 

funds were i n s u f f i c i e n t ?  I mean, were there any part icular 

outstanding reasons t h a t  stand out i n  your mind? 

THE WITNESS: Possibly the rates.  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: The rates? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. I f  there was no t  s u f f i c i e n t  

income coming i n ,  it could poss ib ly  have been the  rates may not  

have been correct .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: As i t  re la tes  t o  the rates,  

what percentage o f  the b i  11 ab1 e rates were being col  1 ected? 

THE WITNESS: On a month-to-month basis, the ones 

t h a t  we sent b i l l s  t o ,  probably about 95 or  96 percent. Every 

month there i s  one or  two t h a t  does not pay. I say one or two, 

there i s  maybe about - -  I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  th ink .  The l a s t  couple 

o f  months on our annual repor t  o r  the monthly repor ts  t h a t  we 

send t o  the  Publ ic Service Commission, i t  averages from two t o  

four,  sometimes more t h a t  don ' t  pay one month and then the next 

month they make a payment o r  they pay l a t e .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Can you maybe - - and i f  you 

can ' t  you need t o  l e t  me know. Can you maybe break t h a t  out 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

49 

based upon ownership versus ren ta l  income? 

THE WITNESS: I ' m  not  qu i te  understanding what your 

question i s ,  s i r .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Some o f  the l o t s  were - - some 

o f  the debt service was being made by l o t s  t h a t  were owned by 

ind iv idua ls  o r  by fami l ies,  i s  t h a t  correct? And you also had 

ren ta l ,  l o t s  t h a t  you were rent ing.  

THE WITNESS: Woodlands d i d  not  have any l o t s  t h a t  

they rented, no. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. So a l l  o f  your income 

was being generated so le l y  from owner occupants? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. A l l  o f  our income came from water 

and sewer payments. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: And t h a t  was generated from 

ind iv idua ls  who ac tua l l y  owned t h e i r  l o t ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, ind iv idua ls ,  o r  corporations, o r  

whatever e n t i t y  t h a t  owned them, yes. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Thank you. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q You ind icated t h a t  a f t e r  the judgment was issued t h a t  

a t  t h a t  po in t  Highvest, t he  Highvest o f f i c e r s  perceived a 

threat  t o  the secur i ty  o f  t h e i r  mortgage. What judgment i s  

tha t  you are r e f e r r i n g  to?  

A It goes back t o  the  case t h a t  Ms. K e l l e r  was reading 

from, t h a t  the  judge entered i n  a cost t h a t  since Woodlands was 
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ine o f  the par t ies  named i n  t h a t  s u i t ,  t h a t  Ms. Ke l l e r  and 

i thers  were e n t i t l e d  t o  attorneys fees. 

Q And i s  t h a t  the judgment i n  the c i r c u i t  court ,  then, 

that she was r e f e r r i n g  t o  and read from? 

A Yes. 

Q 

jefendants? 

I s  i t  correct  t h a t  Camper Corral was one o f  the 

A Yes, I bel ieve so. 

Q And i t  i s  cor rec t  t h a t  Mr. Cozier was one o f  the 

20- defendants? 

A Yes. 

Q And t h i s  i s  the judgment i n  which the  cour t  

jetermined t h a t  Mr. Cozier negotiated i n  bad f a i t h  and used a 

suspect, underhanded, unethical ,  and bad f a i t h  t a c t i c s ?  

MR. FRIEDMAN: Your Honor, o r  Chairman Deason, I 

nean, i t  seems l i k e  t o  me he i s  g e t t i n g  - -  i f  he i s  going t o  

try t o  u t i l i z e  language quoted from an order he should proper ly  

Jsed t h a t  order i n  testimony. 

an order which i s  c l e a r l y  hearsay and expect t o  have t h a t  taken 

as gospel. 

I don ' t  t h i n k  you can read from 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I ' m  going t o  - - Mr. Burgess, 

1 ' m  going t o  a1 low you - - i t  i s  customary t o  read from an order 

and ask a question. 

:an answer it. But, Mr. Burgess, I ' m  going t o  ask you t o  move 

31 ong . 

I f  the  witness has knowledge o f  t h a t  he 
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MR. BURGESS: Yes. That was my point ,  was t h a t  i f  he 

doesn' t  know, then t h a t  i s  f i ne ,  as we1 1. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Do you know whether t h a t  i s  the order t h a t  was 

involved t h a t  you are r e f e r r i n g  to?  

A I s  sounds l i k e  it. I have read - -  
Q Okay. Now, you ind icated t h a t  f o r  sometime t h a t  you 

c a n ' t  def ine,  but f o r  sometime the Woodlands was i n  de fau l t  o r  

had no t  met i t s  ob l igat ions - -  
COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I have a question before we 

move from t h a t  po in t .  

MR. BURGESS: Sure. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Since the  cha i r  has a1 lowed 

Mr. Burgess t o  ask t h a t  question, i n  s p i t e  o f  t h a t  statement 

t h a t  was made, the f i n a l  order s t i l l  was made by the court .  

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: The f i n a l  order s t i l l  was 

i ssued. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, i t  was a c i v i l  ac t ion  and had 

nothing t o  do, other than t h a t  they named the  Woodlands L.P. 

It had nothing, t o  my knowledge, t o  do w i t h  the  u t i l i t y .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. So t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  

question o r  t h a t  statement was made as a p a r t  o f  the r u l i n g  

t h a t  resul ted i n  the  f i n a l  order being issued, t h a t ' s  what I ' m  

real ly t r y i n g  t o  ask. We are not t a l k i n g  about a separate 
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order o r  a separate issue? 

THE WITNESS: No. I bel ieve the defendant's attorney 

wrote tha t  up and the judge signed tha t .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q And you also answered some e a r l i e r  questions by 

Commissioner Bradley about the  company not being able t o  

col 1 ec t  enough money, and Commi ssioner Brad1 ey was asking about 

the pa r t i cu la r  b i l l i n g s .  Am I not  correct  t ha t  the  u t i l i t y  d i d  

no t  b i l l  the owner o f  the ren ta l  property f o r  any o f  the 

service t h a t  i t  provided? 

A Yes, t ha t  i s  t rue .  

Q It i s  correct  t h a t  the  ren ta l  proper t ies were not 

zharged f o r  u t i  1 i t y  service, f o r  water and wastewater service? 

A Yes. 

Q And t h a t  contr ibuted t o  the  revenue s h o r t f a l l  t h a t  

irevented the  u t i l i t y  from being able t o  meet i t s  f i nanc ia l  

i b l i ga t i ons ,  d i d n ' t  it? 

A Well, i t  would have been a wash. What revenue t h a t  

~ o u l d  have been rea l i zed  from the  ren ta l  l o t s  would have been 

In  even wash, o r  even I bel ieve a s h o r t f a l l  even t o  the  

Joodlands o f  Lake Placid.  

Q Are you saying because Highvest owned the ren ta l  

i roper ty  t h a t  they would be paying t h a t  which they charged 

i ighvest as the  owner o f  the  ren ta l  property, and they would be 
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paying t h a t  on the note, i s  t h a t  the po in t  of the wash t h a t  you 

are making? 

A No, s i r .  Up u n t i l  the foreclosure, Highvest only 

owned approximately 15 t o  18 lots i n  Camp Florida Resort. Camp 
Florida Resort L . P .  owned w h a t  you call the rental lots. 

Who owned Camp Florida Resort L.P.? 
I t  was a limited partnership, Camper Corral and Mr. 

Q 
A 

Cozier. 
Q And Camper Corral - -  again ,  Camper Corral i s  owned by 

Mr. Cozier, so i t  was owned by Mr. Cozier? 
A Yes, i t  was owned by two enti t ies.  
Q So except for 18 rental lots, a l l  of the rental lots 

were owned by Mr . Cozier? 
A Well, they were lots t h a t  were rented by private 

ind iv idua l s  i n  the park. B u t  you are grouping everything as 
a - -  calling everything as a rental l o t  owned by Camp Florida 
Resort L .  P. 

Q And Mr. Cozier was not charged for the water and 

wastewater service provided for those 1 ots? 
A T h a t  i s  true. 
Q Now, as L . P .  Utilities - -  and t h a t  i s  what lead t o  

the failure, this failure t o  generate enough revenues i s  w h a t  
lead t o  the default and w h a t  lead t o  the foreclosure of the 
mortgage? 

A No, s i r .  
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Q Where was the  - -  
COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Repeat t h a t  question, please. 

MR. BURGESS : Pardon? 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Repeat the question, please. 

3Y MR. BURGESS: 

Q I s  the f a i l u r e  t o  generate enough revenues from the 

vater and wastewater system t o  cover a l l  o f  the operating costs 

md  the  debt ob l igat ions a cont r ibu t ing  fac to r  t o  the 

foreclosure o f  the mortgage, o r  foreclosure on the  u t i l i t y  

xoper t y?  

A Not being able t o  meet i t s  ob l igat ions,  yes, t h a t  was 

3 con t r i bu t i ng  factor .  

Q Now, as i t  stands today w i th  L.P. U t i l i t i e s  owning 

the property and the mortgage being held by Highvest Company, 

i s  L.P. U t i l i t i e s  charging the  owner o f  the  ren ta l  propert ies 

for  the  service o f  water and wastewater being provided t o  it? 

A 

Q 

We have b i l l e d  them, yes. 

Are you b i l l i n g  them monthly a t  the same basis t h a t  

you b i l l  the  p r i v a t e l y  owned l o t s ?  

A They are b i l l e d  a t  t he  same ra te .  Right now i t  i s  

Zurrently, and as i n  the past, $35 a month. 

Q 
A 

And how long have you been b i l l i n g  them t h i s  amount? 

We have been doing i t  on a quar te r ly  basis, so since 

ve owned the  u t i l i t i e s ,  o r  L.P. U t i l i t i e s  sent them a quar te r ly  

invoice every quarter l i k e  a t  t he  end o f  l a s t  year and a t  the 
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2nd o f  t h i s  f i r s t  quarter.  

Q So there has been two quarters worth o f  b i l l i n g s  f o r  

i ighvest  Company from L.P. U t i l i t i e s ?  

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Have they made payments? 

A No, s i r .  

Q So the payment t h a t  you have received, the revenue 

you have received i s  t h a t  which you have received from the 

p r i v a t e l y  owned l o t s ,  i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Highvest also owns l o t s  i n  there when you say 

p r i v a t e l y  owned l o t s .  So Highvest as an investment - -  
Q How many l o t s  besides the renta l  l o t s  t h a t  are 

included i n  the quar te r ly  b i l l i n g ,  how many l o t s  does Highvest 

own i n  the Camp Flor ida? 

A I bel ieve i t  i s  18. 

Q 18. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Counsel? 

MR. BURGESS: Please. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. Does Highvest own 

a l l  o f  the renta l  l o t s ?  

THE WITNESS: Well, i t  i s  a generic term t h a t  you are 

coming up wi th ,  ren ta l  l o t s .  There are p r i va te  ind iv idua ls  

t h a t  ren t  l o t s  t o  others i n  the park, but  what you are doing i s  

lumping everything i n  there and c a l l i n g  i t  ren ta l  l o t s .  But 

the major i t y  - -  
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COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Well, t ak ing  t h e  universe o f  

ren ta l  l o t s  and separating out p r i va te  owners, ind iv idua ls  who 

may r e n t  t h e i r  l o t s  - -  
THE WITNESS: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: - -  does Highvest own the 

remainder o f  the l o t s ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: L.P. U t i l i t i e s  has sent two 

quar te r ly  b i  11 i ngs t o  Highvest. Who a t  Highvest i s  responsible 

f o r  paying u t i l i t y  b i l l s ?  Would t h a t  be M r .  Cozier, yourse l f ,  

o r  your wi fe? 

THE WITNESS: My wi fe  wr i tes  the  checks. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Does she make the decision t o  

se, pay t h i s ,  pay o r  does she take i n s t r u c t i o n  from someone e 

and then she j u s t  w r i t es  the check? 

THE WITNESS: I c a n ' t  answer t h a t  f o r  

d i l l  have t o  ask her. 

you, s i r .  You 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Well, i f  a b i l l  comes i n ,  who 

i s  responsible f o r  saying t h i s  b i l l  needs t o  be paid? 

THE WITNESS: We1 1 , i t  depends on a number o f  

factors,  as how much money we have i n  your bank account. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Well, no, I ' m  asking the 

question o f  what e n t i t y ,  what person a t  Highvest i s  responsible 

fo r  the i n i t i a l  we have t o  pay t h i s  b i l l  o r  we are not paying 

t h i s  b i l l .  I s  t h a t  M r .  Cozier, yourse l f ,  o r  your wi fe? And 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

57 

then l e t ' s  get i n t o  the factors.  Who has r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  

paying the u t i l i t y  b i l l s ?  I t ' s  a simple question. A b i l l  

comes t o  my house, I pay the b i l l .  Who a t  Highvest has 

responsibi 1 i t y  f o r  paying u t i  1 i t y  b i  11 s? 

THE WITNESS: Well, my w i fe  wr i tes  a l l  the checks. 

She i s  on there. There are some b i l l s  t h a t  come i n  t h a t  I 

receive. I approve them, f o r  l i k e  services t h a t  has been 

provided, you know, l i k e  i f  we h i r e  a contractor.  Highvest 

h i res  a contractor. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Le t '  s 1 eave it focused on 

dater and wastewater, the type o f  b i l l s  t h a t  L.P. would be 

sending t o  Highvest. L.P. b i l l s  Highvest. I s  i t  your w i f e ' s  

respons ib i l i t y  t o  pay the b i l l s  o r  t o  l e t  you o r  Mr. Cozier 

mow there i s  no money t o  pay the  b i l l s ?  

THE WITNESS: She would l e t  us know whether there i s  

any money t o  pay them or  not.  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I have a question. Rental 

r o p e r t i e s  always have a cost t h a t  i s  associated w i th  

naintenance and secur i ty  and other re1 ated issues. Sometimes 

i roper ty  t h a t  - - property t h a t  i s  owned has the  same issues, 

)ut  the owner sometimes w i l l  do those, w i l l  perform those two 

ju t i es  as an i n - k i n d  o r  as something t h a t  i s  j u s t  a natural  

i b l i g a t i o n  o f  a piece o f  proper ty  t h a t  i s  owned by an 

individual o r  a corporation. But I ' m  going back t o  your 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

58 

e a r l i e r  statement about not  being able t o  serv ice your debt. 

Can you break out maintenance and secur i ty ,  and i s  t h a t  an 

issue w i t h  the ren ta l  property? I s  t h a t  an expense? 

THE WITNESS: The associat ion has a q u a r t e r l y  

assessment t h a t  includes maintenance and whatever else.  Now, 

when you say maintenance on our ren ta l  proper t ies - -  
COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Somebody has t o  cu t  the grass 

and p i c k  up the paper. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, we have a lawn serv ice t h a t  

Highvest pays t o  cu t  the  grass on our proper t ies.  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: What about secur i ty?  

THE WITNESS: I t ' s  a gated community, so we r e a l l y  

don ' t  have secu r i t y  as a separate l i n e  item. 

are g e t t i n g  a t ?  

I s  t h a t  what you 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: A coup1 e more. Mr . 
Lovelette, does Highvest in tend t o  pay the  two most recent 

b i l l s  t h a t  i t  has received from L.P. U t i l i t i e s ?  

THE WITNESS: Do they in tend t o  pay? Yes, we in tend 

t o  pay. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Are you going t o  pay? 

THE WITNESS: I f  we have money, yes. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: What are the  sources o f  the  

income f low t o  Highvest, j u s t  r e n t a l  income from the  ren ta l  

1 ots? 
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THE WITNESS: No, we buy and s e l l  rea l  estate. We 

own property i n  Highlands County. We other ren ta l  property 

outside o f  Camp F lo r ida  Resort. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: What types o f  d i s t r i bu t i ons  

o f  income or  p r o f i t s  are made t o  the pa r t i es  involved i n  

Highvest? Are there quar te r ly  d i s t r i bu t i ons ,  annual 

d i s t r i bu t i ons ,  checks wr i t ten? How i s  the  income d i s t r i bu ted  

t o  the owners and the partners, o f f i c e r s ,  d i rec to rs?  

THE WITNESS: As an o f f i c e r  o r  d i rec to r  I never 

received any remuneration from it. 

other ones. 

I c a n ' t  answer f o r  the 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: So you are working a t  

4ighvest f o r  free? 

THE WITNESS: No, I am employed by Highvest. 

4ctua l ly  employed by Highvest, but  I am also an o f f i c e r  o f  

i ighvest .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: So your remuneration a t  

i ighvest  would simply be employee pay? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: I guess what I ' m  concerned 

3bout, and maybe counsel can explore t h i s  and get t o  the 

lottom, i s  we have got two quar te r ly  b i l l i n g s ,  so b i l l i n g s  f o r  

jpproximately s i x  months t o  Highvest by L.P. U t i l i t i e s .  A l o t  

i f  s i m i l a r i t y  o f  i n t e r e s t  and the  b i  1s j u s t  a r e n ' t  ge t t i ng  

la id .  
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BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Mr. Lovelette, how much - -  do you know how much the  

debt service payment i s  t o  Highvest Company f o r  the u t i l i t y  

assets on the loan from Highvest? 

I n  the neighborhood o f  $5,500 a month. 

I s  the u t i l i t y  making those payments? 

No, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Let me jump i n  here w i t h  a 

What i s  your best guess a t  the monthly income f low 

rest? Aside from t h e i r  expenses, but  I am assuming 

i f  i t  i s  a leg i t imate  company i t  maintains balance sheets 

ncome statements. And as v ice  president, I would expect 

would be informat ion t h a t  you would have. What i s  the  

roughly best estimate on monthly income f low i n  and then 

monthly expenses out? Income would be income from whatever 

sources, ren ta l  income, sales o f  rea l  estate. Expenses would 

be employee wages and whatever other expenses t h a t  the company 

would incur .  But what i s  your best guess, income i n ,  income 

Out? 

THE WITNESS: It would have t o  be j u s t  a w i l d  stab i n  

the dark, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Well, who would know tha t?  I 

would t h i n k  the v ice president would, but  would Mr. Cozier have 

tha t  know1 edge? 

THE WITNESS: He would probably have a be t te r  fee l  on 
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i t  on a day-to-day basis, yes. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Okay. Well, we can ask Mr. 

Cozier, but  what i s  your s o r t  o f  best guess stab i n  the dark? 

THE WITNESS: I can give you a rough guess based on 

the u t i l i t y  income, because t h a t  i s  mostly what I ' m  deal ing 

d i th .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Okay. What i s  t h a t  

THE WITNESS: We are probably look ing i n  the 

ieighborhood o f  around $5,500 t o t a l  a month. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: I n ?  

ncome? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. L ike I say, wi thout having bank 

statements i n  f r o n t  o f  me, I c a n ' t  say f o r  sure. 

something I car ry  around i n  my head. 
It i s  not 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: And your best guess a t  

2xpenses out, j u s t  on the  u t i l i t y  side. Actual expenses. 

THE WITNESS: Based on the u t i 1  i t y  side? Well, I 

mow we pay Short U t i l i t i e s ,  who i s  our operator f o r  chemicals, 

;ornewhere i n  the neighborhood o f  around $1,500 a month f o r  

;hat. E l e c t r i c i t y  t o  F lo r ida  Power o r  Progress Energy now runs 

'rom a couple hundred d o l l a r s  t o  a l i t t l e  over $500. 

iepends on things. Other than tha t ,  there i s  probably n icke l  

md dime s t u f f .  We pay odds and ends. Contractors, l i k e  I 

iay, most o f  our work i s  done by contractors. We pay LaGrow 

rhenever needed repa i rs ,  and i t  var ies anywhere from a couple 

iundred do l l a rs  t o  15 o r  1,600. 

It 
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COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: So you have ind icated about 

5,500 on the ins ide,  and my best guess i s  anywhere from 2,200, 

lased on what you said, t o  r i g h t  under 4,000 on the outside. 

Like I say, wi thout  having the things, THE WITNESS: 

it i s  hard f o r  me t o  t e l l  you the numbers, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. 

3Y MR. BURGESS: 

Q Fol lowing t h a t  l i n e ,  Mr. Lovelet te,  i f  I said - -  i f  I 

threw these numbers out t h a t  the res iden t ia l  customers, I mean, 

that  the p r i va te  homeowners are paying $35 a month f o r  water 

and wastewater, and l e t ' s  use the number o f  140, t h a t  would be 

a p r e t t y  close number, would i t  not? 

A Well, I t h i n k  on my monthly repor t  t h a t  I send i n ,  I 

think we have res iden t ia l  customers i ns ide  Camp F lo r ida  Resort 

act ive o f ,  I th ink ,  149. 

Q 149. Okay. A t  140 I came up w i t h  $4,900 a month. 

So we are a l i t t l e  over 5,000 a month. The number t h a t  you 

suggested i s  about your revenue co l l ec t i ons  per month, i s  t h a t  

r i g h t ?  

A Somewhere i n  t h a t  neighborhood. Yes. 

Q So you have revenue co l l ec t i ons  a l i t t l e  over 5,000, 

and you have $5,500 a month t h a t  you have t o  pay i n  debt 

service t o  Highvest, and then you have the  other expenses o f  

running the day-to-day operations, i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A Yes, s i r .  
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Q And the revenue s h o r t f a l l  i s  because Highvest has not 

)aid t h e i r  b i l l s ,  i s  t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A I would not say t h a t  i s  correct .  No. 

Q Wel l ,  you ind icated t h a t  you d i d n ' t  use t o  b i l l  them, 

and then you began b i l l i n g  them and they haven't paid anything 

yet? 

A That i s  correct .  But I would not say t h a t  the 

revenue s h o r t f a l l  can be a t t r i bu ted  on ly  t o  Highvest. 

The number o f  l o t s  t h a t  - -  how many are the number 

lots t h  t are rented tha t  are owned by Highvest? Do you hav 

an approximate number? 

Q 

A 

Q 

The number o f  l o t s  t h a t  are rented? 

Yes. Or the number o f  l o t s  t h a t  are rented by 

Highvest? 

o f  

A Well, there i s  approximately - -  I ' m  not  counting the 

18 t h a t  was previously owned, o r  whatever e lse  t h a t  were i n  

there. These were taken over by the foreclosure act ion,  i t  

o f  232. And approximately 70 o f  those are not  

So there i s  232. There i s  a dispute over what 

dould be a t o t a l  

rentable. 

Q Okay. 

i s  rentable. BUL even a t  70, there i s  a greater number o f  l o t s  

tha t  are rented by Highvest than are p r i v a t e l y  owned by the  

customers i n  the Camp F lo r ida  area, i s  t ha t  correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And no revenue i s  being co l lec ted  t o  cover the 
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jerv  ce f o r  those l o t s .  Now, one o f  the th ings I understand 

your testimony t o  be, correct  me i f  I ' m  wrong, bu t  on t h i s  

issue o f  requ i r i ng  them t o  make payments, even though you have 

I i l l e d  them, they are not making it, you have ind icated t h a t  

you have received word t h a t  they w i l l  disconnect i f  you are 

required t o  impute revenue. 

i y  the u t i l i t y ?  

I s  t h a t  a decis ion by Highvest or 

A That was a l e t t e r  t h a t  we received from Highvest 

:orporation. Highvest Corporation wrote t o  L.P. U t i l i t i e s .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who a t  Highvest? 

THE WITNESS: Highvest Corporation. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who wrote the  l e t t e r ,  though? 

THE WITNESS: The president. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: M r .  Cozier? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Cozier. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Wrote t o  L.P. U t i l i t i e s .  To 

dhom d id he w r i t e  a t  L.P. U t i l i t i e s ?  

THE WITNESS: 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. 

I bel ieve t h a t  i t  came t o  my desk, s i r .  

3Y MR. BURGESS: 

Q Doesn't t h a t  mean the  deal i s  t h a t  they are w i l l i n g  

to  stay connected as long as they get f ree  service pa id  f o r  by 

the r e s t  o f  the customers. But i f  they have t o  pay f o r  t h e i r  

own service, they want t o  disconnect? I mean i s  t h a t  how you 

read t h a t  l e t t e r ?  
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A No, s i r .  

Q Well, I understand - - am I correc t  t h a t  i f  they are 

not being charged t h a t  they are w i l l i n g  t o  remain connected? 

A They are being charged. 

Q Right. But you are saying t h a t  what they have 

w r i t t e n  i s  t h a t  - -  t h i s  t h rea t  o r  t h i s  a l t e r n a t i v e  t h a t  i f  they 

continue t o  be charged, they are going t o  disconnect. Does 

t h a t  mean t h a t  i f  they do not get charged, they w i l l  not  

disconnect? 

A I ' m  not  sure where you' r e  going. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Let  me ask you t h i s .  How do 

you i n t e r p r e t  the l e t t e r ?  What does the l e t t e r  mean t o  you? 

And the  l e t t e r  speaks f o r  i t s e l f ,  bu t  what does i t  mean t o  you? 

It says what? 

THE WITNESS: What the l e t t e r  means t o  me i s  t h a t  

Highvest i s  taking a look a t  the  proposed agency act ion t o  see 

what i t  i s .  And i t  has punched numbers i n  and crunched i t  out,  

and the  amount o f  revenue t h a t  they receive on these l o t s  does 

not equal o r  i s  not economically feas ib le  w i t h  a l l  the expenses 

t h a t  are re la ted  t o  them. And they are look ing  a t  some way o f  

trimming expenses. One would be c u t t i n g  back paying water 

expenses. They have a lso negotiated w i t h  other u t i l i t i e s  l i k e  

Comcast. Highvest i n  the past dur ing of f -season has shut o f f  

e l e c t r i c i t y  t o  t h e i r  l o t s  t o  save money. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What does i t  mean when you say 
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they would - - o r  maybe t h i s  i s  not your terminology, but  using 

Mr. Burgess' terminology, t o  disconnect, what does t h a t  mean? 

Does t h a t  mean t h a t  the l o t s  would no longer be rentable,  o r  

t h a t  t he  l o t s  would be rentable i t  j u s t  would no t  be connected 

t o  the  system, and t h a t  whomever i s  ren t i ng  t h a t  l o t  would have 

t o  use some type o f  a cent ra l  f a c i l i t y ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes. I f  you w i l l  r e f e r  t o  t h a t  map 

tha t  Ms. Pernod gave you, t h a t  one r i g h t  there, i n  the center 

o f  each one o f  those la rge  c i r c l e s  there i s  community 

f a c i l i t i e s ;  men's and women's showers, bathroom f a c i l i t i e s ,  

dasher and dryers. The m a j o r i t y  r i g h t  now o f  t he  RVers t h a t  

:ome and s tay there use those f a c i l i t i e s  instead o f  using the 

mes i n  t h e i r  RV. And there  i s  a number o f  our homeowners i n  

i e re  t h a t  have park homes t h a t  a lso use those f a c i l i t i e s ,  also. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Who provides the  water service 

to those centra l  o r  common f a c i l i t i e s ?  

THE WITNESS: Right now L.P. U t i l i t i e s  provides it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And how does L. P. U t i  1 i t i e s  

-ecover the expense o f  p rov id ing  t h a t  service? 

THE WITNESS: It i s  pa id  f o r  by the  proper ty  owners 

issoci a t i  on. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And the proper ty  owners 

issociat ion,  how do they c o l l e c t  the  money t o  pay tha t?  

THE WITNESS: They send a qua r te r l y  invo ice  t o  a l l  

r o p e r t y  owners. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h a t  invo ice,  does i t  cover 

j u s t  - -  i n  t h a t  invoice,  what expenses are recovered, j u s t  the 

expenses f o r  those community f a c i  1 i t i e s ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes. The assessment t h a t  the property 

owners associat ion sends t o  a l l  property owners covers a myriad 

o f  th ings, insurance, but  i t  i s  cost and upkeep on common areas 

t h a t  the property owners associat ion owns. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So p a r t  o f  t h a t  would be the 

cost o f  prov id ing water service f o r  those common f a c i l i t i e s ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, s 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : 

metered? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

r. 

Are those common f a c i l i t i e s  

r. 

And how i s  the  metered service 

al located t o  the  home owners associat ion, the  property owners 

association? 

THE WITNESS: How i s  i t  al located? There i s  a meter 

on each one o f  those bathhouses. 

and they are sent a b i l l  based on t h e i r  usage. 

It i s  read on a monthly basis 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So i f  there are ren ta l  l o t s  

t h a t  are no longer going t o  be connected t o  the  water system 

and have t o  r e l y  upon the common f a c i l i t y ,  i s  the usage o f  the 

common fac i  1 i t y  going t o  i ncrease? 

THE WITNESS: There w i l l  be a s l i g h t  increase 

because, 1 i ke I say, there i s  - - a good number o f  the  people 
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use the facilities. Like I say, most of them come in motor 
homes, or fifth wheels, or travel trailers, which space, 
bathroom facilities are very small and cramped, and so they use 
the shower, restrooms, et cetera, in the community. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But if there is an increase, 
that increase is going to be allocated to all the property 
owners? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, 
BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Mr. Lovelette, do 
for these rental lots? 

sir. 

IOU knob hob much Highvest 

A It varies. They have a daily rate, they have 

harges 

a 
weekly rate, and then monthly rates if they rent from one to 
three months, or greater. 

Q Well, let's say a monthly rate during the period of 
October through March for a three-month rental? 

A I believe a three-month rental is $550. 
Q Has L.P. Utilities made any payments to Highvest on 

the note that i s  outstanding for the utility assets? 
A There was an invoice sent that L.P. Utilities 

received and it was turned over to our accounting firm to pay, 
and I don't know if she has paid it or not. 

Q In that you have capacity with both L.P. Utilities 
and Highvest, what is your concern or consideration with regard 
t o  Highvest, which has shown it is willing to foreclose, with 
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the  p o s s i b i l i t y  o f  i t  forec los ing again? 

A Would you rephrase t h a t .  I ' m  not sure what the 

question - -  
Q Well, you have sa id t h a t  Highvest - -  t h a t  L.P. 

U t i l i t i e s  has missed a number o f  payments, am I correct? 

A Yes. I bel ieve, yes. 

Q And so t h a t  means Highvest has the oppor tun i ty  t o  

foreclose on the u t i l i t y  assets, i s  t h a t  cor rec t?  

A 

Q 

They have an opportuni ty,  yes. 

What i s  the assurance t o  the Commission o f  our not 

being r i g h t  where we were before you came i n  w i t h  Woodlands 

and, t h a t  i s ,  Highvest deciding t o  foreclose on the  u t i l i t y  

assets, repurchasing i t  a t  the  courthouse steps, and s e l l i n g  it 

t o  a t h i r d  corporat ion down the  road? 

A What assurances? 

Q Yes. I mean, what i s  happening here w i t h  regard t o  

protect ing the customers from a s i m i l a r  event t a k i n g  place? 

A 

assurances? 

What p ro tec t ion  are the  customers look f o r  and 

Q Well, I ' m  asking - -  l e t  me back up. What i s  the 

l i ke l i hood  t h a t  Highvest i s  going t o  foreclose again on the  

i o t e  t h a t  i s  owed t o  i t  by L.P. U t i l i t i e s ?  

A The l i ke l i hood?  

Q Yes. 

A I don ' t  know, s i r .  I c a n ' t  answer t h a t .  
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Q One o f  the issues i s  rent .  And am I cor rec t  t h a t  the 

area which i s  being rented f o r  o f f i c e  space by L.P. U t i l i t i e s  

A 

bui 1 d ing 

the Wood 

Q 
property 

i s  i n  a la rger  bu i l d ing  a t  the f r o n t  o f  Camp F lo r ida  Resort? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Was t h a t  bu i l d ing  formerly owned by the  property 

owners association? 

The property owners associat ion received t h a t  

i n  t h a t  court  judgment. Previous t o  that I bel ieve 

ands or  Camper Corral owned t h a t  bu i ld ing .  

Well, d i d n ' t  the court  determine tha t ,  i n  fac t ,  t h  

owners associat ion had legal  ownership o f  t h a t  

bu i ld ing,  t h a t  was p a r t  o f  the controversy before the court  i s  

who ac tua l l y  owned the bui ld ing,  i s  t h a t  not r i g h t ?  

A Yes. They were awarded t h a t  property, yes. 

Q And the court  determined t h a t  the property owners 

associ a t i  on owned the bui 1 ding? 

A Yes. 

Q Did the property owners associat ion charge ren t  f o r  

the bui 1 ding, charge the Wood1 ands? 

A No. There was something i n  the dec larat ion o f  

covenants and r e s t r i c t i o n s  t h a t  says t h a t  the developer 

corporation had a r i g h t  t o  maintain an o f f i c e ,  and t h a t  i s  what 

they were doing. 

Q And a t  what po in t  d i d  the property owner's 

association lose t h e i r  ownership i n t e r e s t  i n  t h a t  bu i ld ing? 
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A They - - the terminology lose, they sold t h e i r  

i n te res t .  

Q I d i d n ' t  mean a pe jo ra t i ve  by it. They no longer had 

an ownership i n te res t .  

A Right. Without looking a t  the deed, but i t  went 

through a whole process t h a t  the ma jo r i t y  o f  the property 

owners i n  the park, other than a few small m ino r i t y  wanted t h a t  

bu i ld ing .  They f e l t  t h a t  i t  was a l i a b i l i t y  t o  the 

association, and they d i d n ' t  want the addi t ional  expense and 

upkeep on i t . So there was a b a l l o t  issued, and the major i t y  

o f  the  property owners voted on whether they wanted t o  s e l l  the 

property, and t h a t  was the major i t y .  And the board of fered i t  

f o r  sale, advertised i t  f o r  sale, and I bel ieve Camper Corral 

made an o f f e r  on it, and the property owners association 

accepted that  o f f e r ,  and they so ld it. 

Q So there was a b a l l o t  t o  the membership o f  the 

property owners association? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And a t  t h a t  po in t ,  a t  the po in t  o f  t h a t  b a l l o t ,  who 

owned the renta l  l o t s  i n  Camp F or ida? 

A A t  t h a t  po in t  Camp F lo r ida  Resort L.P. owned the 

ren ta l  l o t s ,  but  they d i d  not  vote on the issue. 

Q 
A 

So the vote was by the homeowners? 

The vote was by the ma jo r i t y  o f  property owners. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Question, Counsel. Who was 
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represented i n  t h a t  major i ty? 

THE WITNESS: Every homeowner, every property owner 

i n  the  park. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: We had heard from one o f  the 

xstomers t h a t  the ma jo r i t y  i n t e r e s t  i n  the  proper ty  owners 

3ssociation was held by, I bel ieve we heard Mr. Cozier, I may 

)e mistaken on tha t .  I s  t h a t  inaccurate? 

THE WITNESS: That i s  a common misconcept 

they lump Mr. Cozier as an owner, when i t  i s  actual 

Zorporation or  something t h a t ' s  - - 

on t h a t  

Y a  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Well, hypothe t ica l l y  l e t ' s  

jay t h a t  there are 100 property owners out there.  Was i t  

Simply t h a t  the ma jo r i t y  o f  those 100 property owners cast the 

dote here, o r  d i d  a corporat ion owned, o r  con t ro l led ,  o r  

involved i n  by Mr. Cozier cont ro l  t h a t  m a j o r i t y  vote? 

THE WITNESS: No. I n  t h i s  case, a t  t he  time o f  the  

) a l l o t  Camp F lo r ida  Resort L.P. was the m a j o r i t y  property owner 

in  there. When you say Mr. Cozier con t ro l led  - -  
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Well, who owned Camp F lo r ida  

iesor t?  Who are the  shareholders, the owners? 

THE WITNESS: 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Who are the  partners? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Cozier and Camper Corral .  But i n  

It was a l i m i t e d  partnership.  

t h i s  b a l l o t  issue - -  
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: So M r .  Cozier and Camper 
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Corral,  which the sole shareholder and president was Mr. 

Cozier, correct? 

THE WITNESS: He i s  the so e holder, yes. Well, i n  

Camper Corral he i s  the sole holder, yes. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: So the major i t y  block was 

cont ro l led  d i r e c t l y  o r  i n d i r e c t l y  by Mr. Cozier, e i t he r  

d i r e c t l y  through h i s  involvement or  i n d i r e c t l y  through e n t i t i e s  

t h a t  he owned or  control led? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. Mr. Cozier through h i s  

corporations was a ma jor i t y  property owner i n  there. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thanks. 

THE WITNESS: But i n  the b a l l o t  issue t h a t  I was 

explaining, he abstained - -  or  the major property owner, Camp 

Flor ida Resort L.P., abstained from vo t ing  on tha t .  So the 

major i t y  t h a t  voted f o r  t h i s  was the simple property owners, or  

the nonrental l o t s  i f  you want t o  c a l l  i t  tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: So a po in t  o f  c l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  

by the simply property owners you mean s o r t  o f  the ind iv idua ls  

l i k e  s i t t i n g  i n  the audience? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: I s  i t  the i n t e n t  o f  the 

corporation t o  eventual ly s e l l  the ren ta l  l o t s ,  or  does the 

corporation in tend t o  maintain the l o t s  as ren ta l  property? 

THE WITNESS: We have always of fered them f o r  sale. 
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To help pay f o r  expenses we do o f f e r  them f o r  rent .  It entices 

people t o  come i n  so they can see the park, and then we t r y  t o  

get them t o  purchase. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: So u l t ima te l y  your goal i s  t o  
have them occupied. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, would be t o  s e l l  them out, yes. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q I have t o  ask some questions on tha t .  That i s  the 

u l t imate goal, but  i s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  Highvest Corporation has 

purchased more than i t  has so ld since i t  has become involved i n  

these renta l  l o t s ?  

A Highvest Corporation has been i n  existence f o r  a 

number o f  years, s i r .  

Q Uh-huh. 

A Previously Camp F lo r ida  Resort L.P. owned the ren ta l  

l o t s .  During t h a t  time, Highvest purchased property from 

ind iv iduals  t h a t  wished t o  s e l l  t h e i r  property on the open 

narket, and they bought them as investments. 

Q And i s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  they own more - -  t h a t  they 

lave purchased more i n  t h a t  fashion than they have so ld o f f ?  

Yes, because they are income producing propert ies.  

Now, the amount t h a t  the b u i l d i n g  was sold f o r  was 

A 

Q 
!01,000, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Was t h a t  money d i s t r i b u t e d  t o  the property owners, t o  
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the property owners association members? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Commissioner Deason, I d o n ' t  know what 

t h i s  has t o  do w i th  anything t o  do w i th  t h i s  case. The 

question i s ,  on the ren t  issue i s  i s  the b u i l d i n g  owned by 

somebody other than the property owners associat ion? Everybody 

has sa id  yes. And then would they be e n t i t l e d ,  since the 

u t i l i t y  i s  operating out o f  t h a t  bu i ld ing,  should i t  be 

e n t i t l e d  t o  rent? A l l  t h i s  issue about what happened t o  the 

money t h a t  they paid f o r  i t , d i d  i t  go t o  the homeowners 

association, what has t h a t  got t o  do w i th  the issue o f  are the 

e n t i t l e d  t o  reasonable ren t ,  and i f  they are, what i s  t h a t  

amount o f  reasonable rent? 

I 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Burgess, I t h i n k  we have an 

Dbjection on relevancy. 

MR. BURGESS: Yes. And I would say it i s  relevant 

Decause the property owners associat ion formerly owned t h i s  

Droperty and never charged ren t .  Now the question i s  upon the 

sale o f  t h a t  i s  the u t i l i t y  e n t i t l e d  t o  include ren t?  And my 

Zoncern i s  if t h i s  was sold on behal f  o f  the proper ty  owners 

3ssociation, and the property owners associat ion as previous 

3wners o f  t h i s  never received the proceeds f o r  it, then the 

Z l a i m  t h a t  now the company, because o f  decisions made beyond 

the i r  m inor i ty  c a p a b i l i t y  t o  do anything about, i s  the company 

low e n t i t l e d  t o  s t a r t  imputing ren t .  And t h a t  i s  where the 

issue i s  relevant. 
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MR. FRIEDMAN: With a l l  due respect, I don ' t  t h i n k  

t h i s  Commission's job i s  t o  p ro tec t  members o f  m ino r i t y  

i n te res ts  i n  homeowners associations. Your i nteres t  i s t o  

protect  the  consumers, the customers. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : The object ion i s overrul ed, I 

w i l l  a l low the question. The Commission w i l l  g ive  i t  whatever 

weight we deem appropriate. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Commissioner. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Was the  proceeds from the  sale o f  t h a t  proper t j  

d i s t r i b u t e d  t o  the  members o f  the property owners association? 

A It was deposited i n  the general fund o f  the 

associ a t i  on. 

Q Has any o f  i t  been d i s t r i b u t e d  t o  the  homeowners 

associat ion members? 

A Not t o  ind iv idua ls ,  no. 

Q Has there been any s o l i c i t a t i o n  t o  the  property 

owners associat ion members as t o  whether they would l i k e  the 

proceeds t o  be d i s t r i b u t e d  t o  them? 

MR. FRIEDMAN: Commissioner Deason, again, what has 

t h a t  question got t o  do w i t h  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Friedman, your ob ject ion 

has been l i s tened  t o ,  and noted, and has been overruled. I 

don ' t  hear t h a t  t h i s  i s  a d i f f e r e n t  ob ject ion from before. 

i t  i s  d i f f e r e n t ,  explain i t  t o  me. 

I f  
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MR. FRIEDMAN: I t ' s  not .  He has asked a d i f f e r e n t  

question. And i f  he asks a d i f f e r e n t  question, i f  I expect t o  

preserve my objection, I have t o  ob ject  every time he asks a 

question. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . Your ob ject ion i s 

noted and i s  overruled. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Did you as president o f  the  property owners 

associat ion s o l i c i t  the property owners associat ion members t o  

determine whether they wanted a d i s t r i b u t i o n  o f  t h e i r  share o f  

the  proceeds from t h i s  sale? 

A One o f  the questions on the  b a l l o t  issue when the  

proper ty  was - - whether we should s e l l  the property o r  not,  

there were some questions o f  what we should do w i t h  the  

proceeds from the sale. And i t  was the  r e s u l t  o f  the  ma jo r i t y  

o f  the  members t h a t  voted t o  use the  proceeds f o r  various 

th ings, upgrading some landscaping i n  the  park, new secu r i t y  

gates, and use a po r t i on  o f  i t  along w i t h  what was i n  the  road 

reserve t o  resurface the roads, do maintenance and repa i rs  and 

upkeep on the  common property bu i  1 dings, the  bathhouses. 

Q Do you provide an accounting o f  these expenditures t o  

the property owners associat ion members? 

A Personally I do not,  bu t  our accountant does. And i t  

i s  avai lab le e i t h e r  on a qua r te r l y  basis o r  an annual basis.  

And a t  every meeting when I have - - as president, i f  it i s  
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avai lab le,  I announce it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Burgess, how much more do 

you have f o r  t h i s  witness? 

MR. BURGESS: I have very l i t t l e  more. I had a 

question or  two about the contr ibut ions i n  a i d  o f  construct ion.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: L e t ' s  see i f  we can go ahead 

and f i n i s h  your cross-examination before we break. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Mr. Lovelet te,  are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  the  proposed 

agency act ion t h a t  has been protested here? 

A 

Q 

Yes, s i r .  Not in t imate ly ,  but  I am f a m i l i a r  w i t h  it. 

Do you understand t h a t  there has been a pro forma 

adjustment t o  inc lude i n t o  the  L.P. U t i l i t i e s  r a t e  base an 

amount f o r  meters t o  be i n s t a l l e d  i n  the  remaining l o t s  i n  Camp 

F1 or  i da? 

A During the  aud i t  process f o r  t h i s ,  they  asked us f o r  

what i t  would cost t o  i n s t a l l  the meters. 

informat ion.  So I guess t h a t  i s  what we are using. 

Q 

I gave them t h a t  

Do you know whether t h a t  has been included i n  the  

r a t e  base f o r  the ca l cu la t i on  o f  the ra tes  as proposed by the  

proposed agency act ion? 

A I would have t o  assume t h a t  i t  i s .  

Q 

A 

Have you i n s t a l l e d  these meters, ye t?  

The u t i l i t y  has not  i n s t a l l e d  these meters. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you. That ' s  a l l  we have. 
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Thank you, Commissioner . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f ,  how much do you have f o r  

t h i s  witness? 

MR. HARRIS: We only  have a few questions, 

Commissioner, bu t  I don ' t  know how long i t  w i l l  take. I would 

guess less  than ten  minutes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: L e t ' s  go ahead and conduct your 

cross-examination, as we l l .  

MR. HARRIS: Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HARRIS: 

Q I do have t o  admit t h a t  I am a l i t t l e  b i t  confused 

over the past couple o f  hours worth o f  testimony about what i s  

going on w i t h  a l l  o f  these in te r re la t ionsh ips .  But one simple 

question t h a t  I do have i s  you ind icated t h a t  L.P. U t i l i t i e s  i s  

b i l l i n g  Highvest f o r  u t i l i t y  service t o  what has been ca l l ed  

renta l  l o t s  on a quar te r ly  basis, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Does L.P. U t i l i t i e s  have a t a r i f f  f o r  how i t  can 

charge rates? 

A Pardon? 

Q 
rates? 

Do you have a tariff i n  e f f e c t  f o r  how you charge 

A Yes. 

Q Does t h a t  tariff c a l l  f o r  qua r te r l y  b i l l i n g  o r  
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nonthly b i l l i n g ?  

A Monthly b i l l i n g .  

Q So then why are you charging on a qua r te r l y  basis i n  

i i o l a t i o n  o f  your tariff? 

A It was j u s t  convenience. 

Q So you are ignor ing a Commission order and your 

tar i f f  f o r  convenience? 

A 

Q 

I guess i f  t h a t  i s  t he  way you want t o  put  it, yes. 

The second question I had i s  there has been some t a l k  

that t h e  ren ta l  - - what we c a l l  t he  ren ta l  l o t s  may be 

c l i  sconnected from recei  v i  ng water and wastewater service, i s 

tha t  correct? 

A 

Q 

I ' m  sorry,  would you - -  
It i s  my understanding t h a t  you have discussed the  

p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  i n  the event o f  some type o f  Commission 

decision Highvest might, o r  the  ren ta l  l o t s ,  what has been 

termed as ren ta l  l o t s  might be disconnected from rece iv ing  

services from L.P. U t i l i t i e s ,  i s  t h a t  water and wastewater 

correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q How would hose be disconnected? 

A That I d o n ' t  know, s i r .  

Q 
A Am I? 

Q Does L.P. U t i l i t i e s  o r  Highvest in tend t o  t e a r  the  

Are you going t o  tear  the  l i n e s  out o f  the ground? 
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l i n e s  out o f  the ground? 

A I don ' t  know. 

out o f  the ground, s i r .  

I doubt t h a t  they would tear  the l i n e s  

Q Would they be capped phys ica l l y  some way t h a t  would 

be undoable i n  any way permanently? 

A 

be capped. 

Q 

I f  they were going t o  be shut o f f ,  they would have t o  

Would they be capped i n  such a way tha t  whoever was 

on the l o t  couldn ' t  j u s t  open a faucet and res tore  service? 

I f  they were capped there wouldn't  be a faucet on A 

there, s i r .  

Q I had another question t h a t  I wasn't qu i te  c lear  on. 

You mentioned t h a t  i n  the event t h a t  the l o t s  were disconnected 

phys ica l l y  t h a t  the people ren t i ng  the l o t s  could use the 

bathhouses. And my question i s ,  and I am confused on t h i s ,  

doesn't t h a t  mean t h a t  the people who are paying the b i l l s  t o  

L.P. U t i l i t i e s  are then paying f o r  the bathhouses t h a t  the 

renters are using f o r  free? 

A One o f  the people t h a t  are paying i s  the  Highvest 

Corporation, they are property owners so they a lso  pay f o r  a l l  

expenses f o r  those bathhouses. 

Q So your testimony i s  t h a t  even i f  those l o t s  are 

disconnected because Highvest doesn't  want t o  pay f o r  the 

ind iv idual  l o t s ,  i t  w i l l  s t i l l  make some payments t o  L.P. 

U t i l i t i e s  t o  cover the cost o f  the use o f  the bathhouses? 
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I n  a round about way, because i t  would be b i l l e d  

through the property owners associat ion. 

A 

Q Well, t h a t  i s  my question. I f  i t  i s  b i l l e d  through 

the property owners associat ion, the  ind iv idua l  property owners 

would have t o  bear some burden o f  t h a t  cost o f  the  bathhouses, 

correct? 

A The ind iv idua l  property owners, which include a l l  397 

property owners. 

Q Inc lud ing the 140, whatever, owners who a r e n ' t  

a f f i l i a t e d  w i t h  any o f  the  Cozier owned or  cont ro l led  e n t i t i e s ,  

i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes. They use the f a c i l i t i e s ,  also. 

Q And j u s t  t o  be c lear ,  Highvest has no t  pa id L.P. 

J t i l i t i e s  f o r  any water and wastewater service i t  has received 

since L.P. has been i n  incept ion,  i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Now, there was some discussion about a meeting t h a t  

vas held sometime p r i o r  t o  a foreclosure ac t ion  being 

i n i t i a t e d ,  and I am gathering you are f a i r l y  confused about 

that meeting, you don ' t  r e c a l l  exac t ly  who was there, what was 

iiscussed, bu t  i t  i s  my r e c o l l e c t i o n  t h a t  you seem t o  fee l  thaL 

somebody brought up the idea o f  forec los ing on the  Woodlands 

iecause the  mortgage was i n  jeopardy due t o  a judgment t h a t  had 

ieen obtained, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  
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Q And I guess I j u s t  want t o  c l a r i f y ,  you are  unclear 

tbout exact ly  how long the  Woodlands had not been paying 

{ ighvest p r i o r  t o  t h a t  meeting, i s  t h a t  correct? 

They made sporadic payments since 1995. A 

Q How would you characterize sporadic? Once a month, 

mce a year, once every two years? 

A Whenever. Not on a regular basis. 

Q Well, I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  get an idea o f  what whatever i s  

[ s  whatever once every other month, o r  once every s i x  months, 

ir once a year, o r  - -  
A From what I know, from what T e r r i  t o l d  me, my wi fe ,  

i s  they d i d  make payments. But I don ' t  know the frequency or  

i f  i t  was l i k e  once every three months or  once every year. 

MR. HARRIS: I t h i n k  i n  the i n t e r e s t  o f  

l o n ' t  have any fu r ther  questions. 

Thank you, commi ss i  oners. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Commi ssioners, o t  

b r e v i t y ,  I 

ier questions? 

I t h i n k  we probably asked q u i t e  a few as we went along. 

Mr. Friedman, how extensive i s  your red i rec t?  

MR. FRIEDMAN: I d o n ' t  have any. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That 's  not  extensive a t  

it? Okay. And we have no exh ib i t s  f o r  t h i s  witness. 

Thank you, s i r ,  you are excused. 

Are you going t o  be r e c a l l i n g  t h i s  witness, i s  

correct ,  Mr . Harr is? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

11, i 

t h a t  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

84 

MR. HARRIS: I will be recalling him, Commissioner. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I 'm sorry? 
MR. HARRIS: I will be recalling him as a direct 

adverse, and I believe he has also filed rebuttal testimony. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. So you are excused for 

the time being, sir. 
We are going to take a lunch recess. We will 

reconvene at - - it is 1 2 0  now, we wi 11 reconvene at 2: 15. 

(Lunch recess. 1 
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